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Imperial Chemical Industries PLC —

{Incorporated with limited fiability in England)

ICl Finance PLC

{(incorporated with limited liability in England)

ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.\V.

(Incorporated with limited fiability in the Netherlands and having its corporate seat in Rotterdam)

U.S.$5,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

Due from one month to 30 years from the date of original issue
Guaranteed
{in the case of issues by ICI Finance PLC and
ICl Investments {Netherlands) B.V.) by
Imperial Chemical Industries PLC

On 15 Juby 1997 Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC and ICT Investments (Netherlands) B.V. enteted into a U.5.54,000,000,000 Euro Medium
Term Note Programme (the “Programme”}. On 26 April 1998 the amaunt of the Programme was increased to U.5.54,500,000,000. On 17 May 2000 the amount of
the Programme was increased to 1.5,55,000,000.000, This Qffering Circular supersedes the previous Offering Ciroslars dated 15 July 1997, 28 April 1998, 7 May
1999 and 17 May 2000. Any Notes (as defined below) issued under the Programme (as defined below) after the date bereof are dsswed subject 10 the provisions set out
herein.

Under the Euro Medium Term Note Progratnme described in this Offering Circular, Imperizl Chemical Industries PLC, IC] Finance PLC and ICI
Investments {Netherlands) B.V. {each an “Issuer”), subject 1o compliznce with all relevant laws, regulations and directives, may from time to time
issue Euro Medium Term Notes {the “Notes™} guaranteed (in the case of issues by ICI Finance PLC and ICl Investments (Netherlands) B.V.} by
Imperial Chemical Industries PLC (the “Guarantor”). The apgregate principal amount of Notes outstanding will not at any time exceed
1.5.$5,000,000,000 {or the equivalent in other currencies).

Application has been made to the Financial Services Authority in its capacity as competent aathority under the Financial Services Act 1986 (the “UK
Listing Authority") for Notes issued under the Programme during the period of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular to be admitted to the
Official List of the UK Listing Authority (the “Official List™) and to the London Stock Exchange ple (the “London Stock Exchange™) for such Notes to
be admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s market for listed securiies. Admission to the Official List together with admission to the
London Stock Exchange's market for listed securities constitute official listing on the London Stock Exchange. Unlisted Notes may, however, also be
issued pursuznt to the Programme. The relevant Pricing Supplement (25 defined herein) in respect of the issue of any Notes will specify whether or not
such Notes will be officially listed on the London Stock Exchange (or any other stock exchange).

Copies of this document, which comprises listing particulars approved by the UK Listing Authority in relation to Notes to be issued during the period
of 12 months from the date of this Offering Circular, have been delivered for registration to the Registrar of Companies in England and Wales as
required by Section 149 of the Financial Services Act 1986.

Each Series {as defined herein) of Notes in bearer form will be represented on issue by a temporary global niote in bearer form (each a *“temporary Global
Note™) or a permanent global note in bearer form {each a “permanent Global Note™). Notes in registered form will be represented by registered
certificates (each a “Certificate”™), one Certificate being issued in respect of each Noteholder’s entite holding of Registered Notes of one Series. Global
Notes and Certificates may be deposited on the issue date with 2 common depositary on behalf of Furoclear Bank 5.A./N.V. (“Enroclear™ and
Clearstream Banlang, société anonyme (“Clerstream, Luxembourg™), and/or any other agreed clearing system. The provisions governing the exchange
of interests in Global Notes for other Global Notes and definitive Notes are described in “Summary of Provisions Relating to the Notes while in
Global Form™.

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, Notes to be issued under the Programme will be rated Baa2 in respect of Notes with a
maturity of more than one year and P2 in respect of Notes with 2 maturity of one year or less by Moody’s Investors Service Limited {“Moody’s”), and
BBB+ in respect of Notes with 2 maturity of more than one year and A-2 in respect of Notes with a maturity of one year or less by Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services, a Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. (“Standard & Poor's”). Notes issued under the Programine may be rated or unrated.
Where an issue of Notes is rated, its rating will not necessarily be the same as the rating assigned to Notes issued under the Programme. A rating is not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be sybject to suspension, change or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.
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This Qffering Circular, with the exception of the information contained on pages 47 to 55 and 56 to 58 (section
headed “Netherlands™ only), comprises listing particulars in relation to Imperial Chemical Industries PLC and, with
the exception of the information contained on pages 33 to 37, 47 to 55 and 56 to 58 (section headed “Netherlands”
only), comprises listing particulars in relation to ICI Finance PLC and, with the exception of the informaiion
contained on pages 33 to 46 and 56 to 58 (section headed “United Kingdom™ only), comprises listing particulars
in relation to ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V., given in compliance with the listing rules made under Section
142 of the Financial Services Act 1986 by the Financial Services Authority, for the purpose of giving information
with regard to Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC, ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. and the
Notes. Accordingly, each Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in its listing particulars. To the
best of the knowledge and belief of each Issuer (each of which has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case), such imformation contained in its listing particulars is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything
Lkely to affect the import of such information.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor having made all reasonable enquiries confirms that this document contains all
information with respect to each Issuer, the Guarantor, the Guarantor and its subsidiary undertakings taken as a
whole (the “Group” or the “ICI Group™) and the Notes that is maierial tn the context of the issue and offering of the
Notes, the statements contained in it relating to each Issuer, the Guarantor and the Group are in every material
particular true and accurate and not misleading, the opinions and intentions expressed in this Offering Circular
with regard to each Issuer, the Guarantor and the Group are honestly beld, have been reached after considering ail
relevant circumsiances and are based on reasonable assumptions, there are no other facts in relation to each Issuer, the
Guarantor, the Group or the Notes the omission of which would, in the context of the issue and offering of the Notes,
make any statement in this Offering Circular misleading in any material respect and all reasonable enguiries have
been made by the Issuer and the Guarantor to ascertain such facts and to verify the accuracy of all such information
and statements.

No person has been authorised to grve any information or to make any representation other than those contained in
this Offering Circular in connection with the issue or sale of the Notes and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been autborised by any Issuer, the Guarantor or any of the Dealers
or Arranger (as defined in “Summary of the Programme”). Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any
sale made in connection herewith shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no
change in the affairs of any Issuer or the Guarantor since the date bereof or the date upon which this Offering
Circular bas been most recently amended or supplemented or that there has been no aduverse change in the financial
position of any Issuer or the Guarantor since the date hereof or the date upon which this Offering Circular has been
most recently amended or supplemented or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is
correct as of any time subsequent to the date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document
containing the same.

The distribution of this Offering Circular and the offering or sale of the Notes in certain jurisdictions may be
restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Offering Circular comes are required by the Issuers, the
Guarantor, the Dealers and the Arranger to inform themselves about and to observe any such restriction.

The Notes bave not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”™) and include Notes in bearer form that are subject to U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain
exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons. For a description
of certain restrictions on offers and sales of Notes and on distribution of this Offering Circular, see “Subscription
and Sale”.

Schroder is a trademark of Schroders Holdings plc and is used under licence by Salomon Brothers International
Limited.

This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on bebalf of any Issuer, the Guarantor
or the Dealers to subseribe for, or purchase, any Notes.

The Arranger and the Dealers have not separately verified the information contained in this Offering Circular.
None of the Dealers or the Arranger makes any representation, express or implied, or accepts any responsibility,
with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any of the information in this Qffering Circular. Neither this
Offering Circular nor any other financial statements are intended to provide the basis of amy credit or other
evaluation and should not be considered as a recommendation by any Issuer, the Guarantor, the Arranger or the
Dealers that any recipient of this Qffering Circular or any other financial statemenis should purchase the Notes.
Each potential purchaser of Notes should determine for itself the relevance of the information contained in this
Qffering Circular and its purchase of Notes showld be based wpon such tmuvestigation as it deems necessary. None
of the Dealers or the Arranger undertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of any Issuer or the
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Guarantor during the life of ithe arrangements contemplated by this Offering Circular nor to advise any investor or
potential investor in the Notes of any information coming to the attention of any of the Dealers or the Arranger.

In connection with any Tranche (as defined in “Summary of the Programme”), one of the Dealers will act as a
stabilising agent (the “Stabilising Agens”). The identity of the Stabilising Agent will be disclosed in the relevant
Pricing Supplement. References in the next paragraph to “this issue” are to each Tranche in relation to which a
Stabilising Agent is appointed.

In connection with this issue, the Stabilising Agent may over-allot or effect transactions which stabilise or maintain
the market price of the Notes at a level which might not otherwise prevail. Such stabilising, if commenced, may be
discontinued at any time and will be carried out in accordance with applicable latws and regulations.

In this Offering Circular, unless otherwise specified or the comtext otherwise requires, references to “U.S.8” are to
U.S. dollars, to “NLG™ are to Dutch guilders, to “£” are to pounds sterling, to “euro™ and € is to the single
currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European Ecomomic and Moneiary Union pursuant to the
Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on Ewropean Union and as amended by
the Treaty of Amsterdam.




DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Offering Circular should be read and construed in conjunction with each relevant Pricing
Supplement, the most recently published audited annual accounts, and any interim accounts (whether
audited or unaudited) published subsequently to such annual accounts, of each Issuer and the
Guarantor from time to time, which shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and to form part of, this
Offering Circular and which shall be deemed to modify or supersede the contents of this Offering
Circular to the extent that a statement contained in any such document is inconsistent with such
contents; provided, however, that no such document or modifying or superseding statement shall form
part of the listing particulars issued in compliance with the listing rules made under Section 142 of the
Financial Services Act 1986.

SUPPLEMENTARY LISTING PARTICULARS

If at any time the Issuers shall be required to prepare supplementary listing particulars pursuant to Section
147 of the Financial Services Act 1986, the Issuers will prepare and make available an appropriate
amendment or supplement to this Offering Circular or a further offering circular which, in respect of
any subsequent issue of Notes to be listed on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority, shall
constitute supplementary listing particulars as required by the UK Listing Authority and Section 147 of
the Financial Services Act 1986.
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SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from and is qualified in its entirety by the
remainder of this Offering Circular.

Issuers: Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC and ICI
Investments (Netherlands) B.V.

Guarantor (in respect of issues
by ICI Finance PLC and ICI
Investments (Netherlands) B.V.): Imperal Chemical Industries PLC.

Description: Euro Medium Term Note Programme.

Size: Up to U.5.$5,000,000,000 (or the equivalent in other currencies at
the date of issue) aggregate principal amount of Notes outstanding
at any one time.

Arranger: Deutsche Bank AG London.

Dealers: ABN AMRO Bank N.V, Barclays Bank PLC, BNP PARIBAS,
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited, Deutsche Bank AG
London, HSBC Bank plc, J.P.Morgan Securities Ltd, Mizuho
International plc, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, Salomon
Brothers International Limited and UBS AG, acting through its
financial services group UBS Warburg.

The Issuer may from time to time terminate the appointment of
any dealer under the Programme or appoint additional dealers
either in respect of one or more Tranches or in respect of the
whole Programme. References in this Offering Circular to
“Permanent Dealers” are to the persons listed above as Dealers
and to such additional persons that are appointed as dealers in
respect of the whole Programme (and whose appointment has
not been terminated) and to “Dealers” are to all Permanent
Dealers and all persons appointed as a dealer in respect of one or
more Tranches.

Fiscal Agent: The Chase Manhattan Bank.

Method of Issue: The Notes will be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated basis.
The Notes will be issued in series (each a “Series”) having one or
more issue dates and on terms otherwise identical (or identical
other than in respect of the first payment of interest), the Notes
of each Series being intended to be interchangeable with all other
Notes of that Series. Each Series may be issued in tranches (each a
“Tranche™) on the same or different issue dates, The specific terms
of each Tranche (which will be supplemented, where necessary,
with supplemental terms and conditions and, save in respect of
the issue date, issue price, first payment of interest and principal
amount of the Tranche, will be identical to the terms of other
Tranches of the same Senes) will be set out in a pricing
supplement to this Offering Circular (a “Pricing Supplement”).

Issue Price: Notes may be issued at their principal amount or at a discount or
premium to their principal amount. Partly Paid Notes may be
issued, the issue price of which will be payable in two or more
instalments.

Form of Notes: The Notes may be issued in bearer form only (“Bearer Notes™), in
bearer form exchangeable for Registered Notes (“Exchangeable
Bearer Notes”) or in registered form only (“Registered Notes™).
Each Tranche of Bearer Notes and Exchangeable Bearer Notes
will be represented on issue by a temporary Global Note if (i)
definitive Notes are to be made available to Noteholders
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Clearing Systems:

Initial Delivery of Notes:

Currencies:

Swiss Francs:

Sterling:

following the expiry of 40 days after their issue date or (i) such
Notes have an initial maturity of more than one year and are
being issued in compliance with the D Rules (as defined in
“Summary of the Programme ~ Selling Restrictions™), otherwise
such Tranche will be represented by a permanent Global Note.
Registered Notes will be represented by Certificates, one
Certificate being issued in respect of each Noteholder’s entire
holding of Registered Notes of one Series. Certificates
representing Registered Notes that are registered in the name of a
nominee for one or more clearing systems are referred to as

“Global Certificates”.

Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, and such other clearing
system as may be agreed between the Issuer, the Fiscal Agent and
the relevant Dealer.

On or before the issue date for each Tranche, the Global Note
representing Bearer Notes or Exchangeable Bearer Notes or the
Global Certificate representing Registered Notes may be
deposited with a common depositary for Furoclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other agreed clearing
system. Global Notes or Global Certificates may also be
deposited with any other clearing system or may be delivered
outside any clearing system provided that the method of such
delivery has been agreed in advance by the Issuer, the Fiscal
Agent and the relevant Dealer. Registered Notes that are to be
credited to one or more clearing systems on issue will be
registered in the name of nominees or a common nominee for
such cleanng systems.

Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and
directives, Notes may be issued in U.S. dollars, Australian dollars,
Austrian schillings, Canadian dollars, Danish kroner, Deutsche
marks, Dutch guilders, eurocs, Finnish markkas, French francs,
Hong Kong dollars, Portuguese escudos, ftalian lire, New Zealand
dollars, sterling, Swedish kronor, Swiss francs or yen or in other
currencies if the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (where applicable)
and the relevant Dealers so agree.

Issues of Notes denominated in Swiss francs or carrying a Swiss
franc-related element with a maturity of more than one year
(other than Notes privately placed with a single investor with no
publicity) will be effected in compliance with the relevant
regulations of the Swiss National Bank based on article 7 of the
Federal Law on Banks and Savings Banks of 8 November 1934
{as amended) and article 15 of the Federal Law on Stock
Exchanges and Securities Trading of 24 March 1995 in
connection with article 2, paragraph 2 of the Ordinance of the
Federal Banking Commission on Stock Exchanges and Securities
Trading of 2 December 1996. Under the said regulations, the
relevant Dealer or, in the case of a syndicated issue, the lead
manager (the “Swiss Dealer”), must be a bank domiciled in
Switzerland (which includes branches or subsidiaries of a foreign
bank Iocated in Switzerland) or a securities dealer duly licensed
by the Swiss Federal Banking Commission pursuant to the
Federal Law on Stock Exchanges and Securities Trading of
24 March 1995. The Swiss Dealer must report certain details of
the relevant transaction to the Swiss National Bank no later than
the Issue Date of the relevant Notes.

Issues of Notes denominated in sterling shall comply with all
applicable laws and regulations (as amended from time to time)
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Maturities:

Denomination:

Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Notes:

Zero Coupon Notes:

Vanable Coupon Amount
Notes:

Interest Periods and Interest
Rates:

of United Kingdom authorities. See paragraph 10 under “General
Information™.

Subject to compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and
directives, any maturity between one month and 30 years unless
otherwise permitted by then curmrent laws, regulations and
directives.

Definitive Notes will be in such denominations as may be
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, save that unless
otherwise permitted by then cument laws and regulations, Notes
(including Notes denominated in steriing) in respect of which the
issue proceeds are to be accepted by the relevant Issuer in the
United Kingdom will have a minimum denomination of
£100,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies), unless such
Notes may not be redeemed until the third anniversary of their
date of issue and are to be admitted to the Official List and
admitted to trading by the London Stock Exchange or listed on
the stock exchange of a country within the European Economic
Area (an “EEA Exchange”).

Fixed interest will be payable in arrear on the date or dates in each
year. Fixed interest will be payabie on such date or dates as may be
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer and as set out in
the relevant Pricing Supplement and on redemption and will be
calculated on the basis of such Fixed Day Count Fraction as may
be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest at a rate determined:

(i) on the same basis as the floating rate under a notional
interest rate swap transaction in the relevant Specified
Currency governed by an agreement incorporating the 2000
ISDA Definitions, (as published by the International Swaps
and Derivatives Association, Inc., and as amended and
updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the
Notes of the relevant Series); or

(i) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on the agreed
screen page of a commercial quotation service; or

(i) on such other basis as may be agreed between the Issuer and
the relevant Dealer.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer and set out in the
relevant Pricing Supplement for each Series of Floating Rate
Notes.

Zero Coupon Notes may be issued at their principal amount or at
a discount to it and will not bear interest.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of variable
coupon amount Notes will specify the basis for calculating the
amounts of interest payable, which may be by reference to a
stock index or formula or as otherwise provided in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

The length of the interest periods for the Notes and the applicable
interest rate or its method of calculation may differ from time to
time or be constant for any Series. Notes may have a maximum
Interest rate, a minimum interest rate, or both. Interest on
Floating Rate Notes in respect of each Interest Period, as agreed
prior to issue by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer, will be
payable on such Interest Payment Dates, and will be calculated
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Variable Redemption Amount
Notes:

Redemption by Instalments:

QOther Notes:

Optional Redemption:

Status of Notes:

Negative Pledge:
Cross Default:
Rating:

Early Redemption:

on the basis of such Floating Day Count Fraction, as may be
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of variable
redemption amount Notes will specify the basis for calculating the
redemption amounts payable, which may be by reference to a
stock index or formula or as otherwise provided in the relevant
Pricing Supplement. Unless permitted by the then current laws
and regulations, Notes (including Notes denominated in sterling)
in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be accepted by the
relevant Issuer in the United Kingdom must have a minimum
redemption amount of £100,000 {or its equivalent in other
currencies) unless such Notes may not be redeemed until the
third anniversary of their date of issue and to be admitted to the
Official List of the UK Listing Authornty and admitted to trading
by the London Stock Exchange or are listed on an EEA Exchange.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of Notes
that are redeemable in two or more instalments will set out the
dates on which, and the amounts in which, such Notes may be
redeemed.

Terms applicable to high interest Notes, low interest Notes, step-
up Notes, step-down Notes, dual currency Notes, reverse dual
currency Notes, optional dual currency Notes, Partly Paid Notes
and any other type of Note that the Issuer and any Dealer or
Dealers may agree to issue under the Programme will be set out
in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of Notes
will state whether such Notes may be redeemed prior to their
stated maturity at the option of the Issuer {either in whole or in
part) and/or the holders, and if so the terms applicable to such
redemption.

The Notes and (if applicable) the guarantee in respect of them will
constitute unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer
and the Guarantor, respectively, all as described in “Terms and
Conditions of the Notes - [Guarantee and] Status™.

See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes - Negative Pledge”.
See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — Events of Default™.

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement,
Notes to be issued under the Progtamme will be rated Baa2 in
respect of Notes with a matunty of more than one year and P2
in respect of Notes with a maturity of one year or less by
Moody’s Investors Service Limited (*Moody’s™), BBB+ in respect
of Notes with a maturity of more than one year and A-2 in
respect of Notes with a maturity of ane year or less by Standard
& Poor’s Ratings Services, a Division of the McGraw-Hill
Companies Inc. (“Standard & Poor’s™).

Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated.
Where an issue of Notes is rated, its rating will not necessarily be
the same as the rating assigned to Notes issued under the
Programme. A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or
hold securities and may be subject to suspension, change or
withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating agency.

Except as provided in “Optional Redemption™ above, Notes will
be redeemable at the option of the Issuer prior to maturity only
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Withholding Tax:

Governing Law:

Listing:

Selling Restrictions:

for tax reasons. See “Terms and Conditions of the Notes -
Redemption, Purchase and Options™.

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes will
be made free and clear of withholding taxes of the United
Kingdom or, in the case of Notes issued by ICI Investments
(Netherlands) B.V., the Netherlands, subject to customary
exceptions, all as described in “Terms and Conditions of the
Notes - Taxation”.

English.

Application has been made to admit Notes issued under the
Programme to the Official List and to admit them to trading on
the London Stock Exchange and/or such other or further
exchange as otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement. As specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, a
Series of Notes may be unlisted.

United States, United Kingdom, Netherlands and Japan. See
“Subscription and Sale”.

In connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche of
Notes additional restrictions may be imposed which will be set
out in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Issuers and the Guarantor are Category 2 for the purposes of
Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Notes issued in bearer form will be issued in compliance with U.S.
Treas. Reg. 1.163-5(c){2)(iXD) (the “D Rules™) unless the relevant
Pricing Supplement states that Notes are issued in compliance
with U.S. Treas. Reg. 1.163-5(c}(2)(i)}(C) (the “C Rules”™).
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following s the text of the terms and conditions that, subject to completion and amendment and as supplemented
or varied in accordance with the provisions of the relevant Pricing Supplement, shall be applicable to the Notes in
definitive form (if any) issued in exchange for the Global Note(s) representing each Series. Either (i) the full text of
these terms and conditions together with the relevant provisions of the Pricing Supplement or (i1) these terms and
conditions as so completed, amended, supplemented or varied (and subject to simplification by the deletion of non-
applicable provisions), shall be endorsed on such Bearer Notes or on the Certificates relating to such Registered Notes.
Provisions in square brackets are only applicable o Notes issued &y ICI Finance PLC or ICI Investments
(Netherlands) B.V. and, where two provisions in square brackets are separated by an oblique, the first shall be
applicable to Notes issued by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC and the second shall be applicable to Notes issued
by ICI Finance PLC or ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. Provisions in square brackets preceded by an asterisk
and separated by an obligue are applicable to Notes issued by ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. and where two
provisions in square brackets are separated by an obligue and preceded by an asterisk, the first shall be applicable to
Notes issued by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC or ICI Finance PLC and the second shall be applicable to Notes
issued by ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. All capitalised terms that are not defined in these Conditions will
bave the meanings given to them in the relevant Pricing Supplement. Those definitions will be endorsed on the
definitive Notes or Certificates, as the case may be. References in the Conditions to “Notes™ are to the Notes of
one Series only, not to all Notes that may be issued wunder the Programme.

The Notes are issued pursuant to an amended and restated Agency Agreement dated 15 May 2001 (as
amended or supplemented as at the date of issue of the Notes (the “Issue Date™), the “Agency
Agreement”) between Impenal Chemical Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC and ICI Investments
(Netherlands) B.V. (together, the “Issuers” and, for the purposes of these Conditions, such of them as
is named on this [Note]/[Certificate] as the issuer being the “Issuer”), Imperial Chemical Industries
PLC in its capacity as the guarantor (the “Guarantor”), The Chase Manhattan Bank as fiscal agent and
the other agents named in it and with the benefit of (1) in the case of Notes issued by Imperial Chemical
Industries PLC, the Deed of Covenant dated 15 May 2001 executed by Impenial Chemical Industries
PLC and (ii) in the case of Notes issued by ICI Finance PLC or ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. the
Deeds of Covenant dated 15 May 2001 executed by ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. and ICI Finance
PL.C respectively and, in each case, by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC (as amended or supplemented
as at the Issue Date, the “Deeds of Covenant”). The fiscal agent, the paying agents, the registrar, the
transfer agents and the calculation agent(s) for the time being (if any) are referred to below respectively
as the “Fiscal Agent”, the ‘“Paying Agents” (which expression shall include the Fiscal Agent), the
“Registrar”, the “Transfer Agents” and the “Calculation Agent(s)”. The Noteholders (as defined below),
the holders of the interest coupons (the “Coupons™) appertaining to interest bearing Notes in bearer
form and, where applicable in the case of such Notes, talons for further Coupons (the “Talons™) (the
“Couponholders”) and the holders of the receipts for the payment of instalments of principal {the
“Receipts”) relating to Notes in bearer form of which the principal is payable in instalments are deemed
to have notice of all of the provisions of the Agency Agreement applicable to them.

Copies of the Agency Agreement and the Deeds of Covenant are available for inspection at the specified
offices of each of the Paying Agents, the Registrar and the Transfer Agents.

1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are issued in bearer form (“Bearer Notes”, which expression includes Notes that are specified
to be Exchangeable Bearer Notes), in registered form (“Registered Notes”) or in bearer form exchangeable
for Registered Notes (“Exchangeable Bearer Notes™) in each case in the Specified Denomination(s) shown
hereon.

All Registered Notes shall bave the same Specified Denomination. Where Exchangeable Bearer Notes are issued, the
Registered Notes for which they are exchangeable shall bave the same Specified Demomination as the lowest
denomination of Exchangeable Bearer Notes.

Bearer Notes are serially numbered and are issued with Coupons (and, where appropriate, a Talon)
attached, save in the case of Notes that do not bear interest in which case references to interest (other
than in relation to interest due after the Maturity Date), Coupons and Talons in these Conditions are
not applicable. Any Bearer Note the principal amount of which is redeemable in instalments is issued
with one or more Receipts attached.

Registered Notes are represented by registered certificates (“Certificates”) and, save as provided in
Condition 2(¢), each Certificate shall represent the entire holding of Registered Notes by the same holder.
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Title to the Bearer Notes and the Receipts, Coupons and Talons shall pass by delivery. Title to the
Registered Notes shall pass by registration in the register that the Issuer shall procure to be kept by the
Registrar in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement (the “Register”). Except as ordered
by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the holder (as defined below) of any Note,
Receipt, Coupon or Talon shall be deemed to be and may be treated as its absolute owner for all
purposes, whether or not it is overdue and regardiess of any notice of ownership, trust or an interest in
it, any writing on it (or on the Certificate representing it} or its theft or loss (or that of the related
Certificate) and no person shall be liable for so treating the holder.

In these Conditions, “Noteholder” means the bearer of any Bearer Note and the Receipts relating to it or
the person in whose name a Registered Note is registered (as the case may be), “holder” (in relation to a
Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon) means the bearer of any Bearer Note, Receipt, Coupon or Talon or the
person in whose name a Registered Note is registered (as the case may be) and capitalised terms have the
meanings given to them hereon, the absence of any such meaning indicating that such term is not
applicable to the Notes.

2.  Exchanges of Exchangeable Bearer Notes and Transfers of Registered Notes
(a)  Exchange of Exchangeable Bearer Notes

Subject as provided in Condition 2(f}, Exchangeable Bearer Notes may be exchanged for the same
aggregate principal amount of Registered Notes at the request in writing of the relevant Noteholder and
upon surrender of each Exchangeable Bearer Note to be exchanged, together with all unmatured Receipts,
Coupons and Talons relating to it, at the specified office of any Transfer Agent; provided, however, that
where an Exchangeable Bearer Note is surrendered for exchange after the Record Date (as defined in
Condition 7(%)) for any payment of interest, the Coupon in respect of that payment of interest need
not be surrendered with it. Registered Notes may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes. Bearer Notes of
one Specified Denomination may not be exchanged for Bearer Notes of another Specified
Denomination. Bearer Notes that are not Exchangeable Bearer Notes may not be exchanged for
Registered Notes.

(8)  Transfer of Registered Notes

One or more Registered Notes may be transferred upon the surrender (at the specified office of the
Registrar or any Transfer Agent) of the Certificate representing such Registered Notes to be transferred,
together with the form of transfer endorsed on such Certificate duly completed and executed and any
other evidence as the Registrar or Transfer Agent may reasonably require. In the case of a transfer of
part only of a holding of Registered Notes represented by one Certificate, a new Certificate shall be
issued to the transferee in respect of the part transferred and a further new Certificate in respect of the
balance of the holding not transferred shall be issued to the transferor.

(¢)  Exercise of Options or Partial Redemption in Respect of Registered Notes

In the case of an exercise of an Issuer’s or Noteholders’ option in respect of, or a partial redemption of, a
holding of Registered Notes represented by a single Certificate, a new Certificate shall be issued to the
holder to reflect the exercise of such option or in respect of the balance of the holding not redeemed. In
the case of a partial exercise of an option resulting in Registered Notes of the same holding having
different terms, separate Certificates shall be issued in respect of those Notes of that holding that have
the same terms. New Certificates shall only be issued against surrender of the existing Certificates to the
Registrar or any Transfer Agent. In the case of a transfer of Registered Notes to a person who is already a
holder of Registered Notes, a new Certificate representing the enlarged holding shall only be issued
against surrender of the Certificate representing the existing holding.

(d)  Delivery of New Certificates

Each new Certificate to be issued pursuant to Conditions 2(a), (8) or (¢) shall be available for delivery
within three business days of receipt of the request for exchange, form of transfer or Exercise Notice or
surrender of the Certificate for exchange. Delivery of the new Certificate(s) shall be made at the specified
office of the Transfer Agent or of the Registrar (as the case may be) to whom delivery or susrender of such
request for exchange, form of transfer, Exercise Notice or Certificate shall have been made or, at the
option of the holder making such delivery or surrender as aforesaid and as specified in the relevant
request for exchange, form of transfer, Exercise Notice or otherwise in writing, be mailed by uninsured
post at the risk of the holder entitled to the new Certificate to such address as may be so specified, unless
such holder requests otherwise and pays in advance to the relevant Agent the costs of such other method
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of delivery and/or such insurance as it may specify. In this Condition (@), “business day” means a day,
other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which banks are open for business in the place of the specified
office of the relevant Transfer Agent or the Registrar.

(¢)  Exchange Free of Charge

Exchange and transfer of Notes and Certificates on registration, transfer, partial redemption or exercise of
an option shall be effected without charge by or on behalf of the Issuer, the Registrar or the Transfer
Agents, but upon payment of any tax or other governmental charges that may be imposed in relation
to it (or the giving of such indemnity as the Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent may require).

()  Closed Periods

No Noteholder may require the transfer of a Registered Note to be registered or an Exchangeable Bearer
Note to be exchanged for one or more Registered Note(s) (i) during the period of 15 days ending on the
due date for redemption of, or payment of any Instalment Amount in respect of, that Note, (i) during
the period of 15 days before any date on which Notes may be called for redemption by the Issuer at its
option pursuant to Condition 6(d), (i11) after any such Note has been called for redemption or (iv) during
the period of seven days ending on (and including) any Record Date. An Exchangeable Bearer Note
called for redemption may, however, be exchanged for one or more Registered Note(s) in respect of
which the Certificate is simultaneously surrendered not later than the relevant Record Date.

3. [Guarantee and] Status
[(a) Guarantee

The Guarantor has unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed to
be payable by the Issuer under the Notes, Receipts and Coupons. Its obligations in that respect (the
“Guarantee™) are contained in the Deeds of Covenant executed by 1Cl Finance PLC or ICl Investments
{(Netherlands) B.V. respectively and, in each case, by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC.]

[(B)] Status of Notes fand Guaraniee]

The Notes and the Receipts and Coupons constitute (subject to Condition 4) unsecured obligations of
the Issuer and shall at all times rank pari passu and without any preference among themselves. The
payment obligations of the Issuer under the Notes and the Receipts and Coupons [and of the
Guarantor under the Guarantee] shall, save for such exceptions as may be provided by applicable
legislation and subject to Condition 4, at all times rank at least equally with all other unsecured and
unsubordinated indebtedness and monetary obligations of the Issuer [and the Guarantor, respectively,]
present and future.

4, Negative Pledge
(a) So long as any of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons remain outstanding (as defined in the Agency
Agreement):

(i) [neither] the Issuer [nor the Guarantor] shall [not] create or permit to subsist any mortgage,
charge, pledge, lien or other form of encumbrance or security interest (“Security”) upon the
whole or any part of its undertaking, assets or revenues present or future to secure any
Relevant Debt, or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any Relevant Debt;

(ii) [each of] the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall procure that no other person creates or permits
to subsist any Security upon the whole or any part of the undertaking, assets or revenues
present or future of that other person to secure any of the Issuer’s Relevant Debt [or the
Guarantor’s Relevant Debt], or any guarantee of or indemnity in respect of any of the
Issuer's Relevant Debt [or the Guarantor's Relevant Debt}; and

(ii)) [each of] the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall procure that no other person [other than the
Guarantor] gives any guarantee of, or indemnity in respect of, any of the Issuer’s Relevant
Debt {or the Guarantor's Relevant Debt);

unless, at the same time or prior thereto, the Issuer’s obligations under the Notes, Receipts and
Coupons [or, as the case may be, the Guarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee] (A) are
secured equally and rateably therewith or benefit from a guarantee or indemnity in substantially
identical terms thereto, as the case may be, or (B) have the benefit of such other securty,
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guarantee, indemnity or other arrangement as shall be approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as
defined in the Agency Agreement) of the Noteholders.

{b) For the purposes of this Condition:

“Relevant Debt” means any present or future indebtedness in the form of, or represented by,
bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or other securities that are for the time being, or are intended
by the issuer thereof to be quoted, listed or ordinarily dealt in on any stock exchange, automated
trading system, over-the-counter or other securities market, denominated, payable or optionally
payable in a currency other than *{pounds sterling/Dutch guilders] or in *[pounds sterling/Dutch
guilders) but with a view to being distributed outside *{the United Kingdom/the Netherlands];

“Subsidiary” means any entity whose affairs are required by law or in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles applicable in the United Kingdom to be consolidated in the
consolidated accounts of the [Issuer/Guarantor].

5. Interest and other Calculations
(@) Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount {or, if it is a Partly Paid Note, the
amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annhum equal
to the Fixed Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each
year and on the Maturity Date if that does not fall on an Interest Payment Date,

Except as provided hereon, the amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of
the Fixed Interest Period ending on (but excluding such date) will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount.
Payments of interest on any Interest Payment Date will, if so specified hereon, amount to the Broken
Amount so specified.

As used in these Terms and Conditions, “Fixed Interest Period” means the period from {(and including)
an Interest Payment Date (or the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first}
Interest Payment Date.

If interest is required to be calculated for a period other than a Fixed Interest Period, such interest shall be
calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by the
applicable Fixed Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the
relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in
accordance with applicable market convention.

In these Terms and Conditions, “Fixed Day Count Fraction” means:
(i) if “Actual/Actual (ISMA)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement:

(a) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from (and inciuding) the
most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest Commencement Date} to (but
excluding) the relevant payment date (the “Accrual Period™) is equal to or shorter than the
Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such
Accrual Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Pricing
Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; or

(b) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the Determination Period during
which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

(1) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the Determination Period in which
the Accrual Petiod begins divided by the product of (x) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement) that would occur in one calendar year; and

(2) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the next Determination Period
divided by the product of (x} the number of days in such Determination Period and (y)
the number of Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year; and

{ii) if “30/360” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the number of days in the period
from (and including) the most recent Interest Payment Date (or, if none, the Interest
Commencement Date) to {(but excluding) the relevant payment date (such number of days being
calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days of 12 30-day months) divided by 360.
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In these Terms and Conditions “Determination Period” means each period from (and including) a
Determination Date to (but excluding) the next Determination Date (including, where either the
Interest Commencement Date or the final Interest Payment Date is not a Determination Date, the
petiod commencing on the first Determination Date prior to and ending on the first Determination
Date falling after, such date); and

“sub-unit” means with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such currency
that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to euro, means one
cent.

(B)  Interest on Floating Rate Notes
(i) Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note bears interest on its outstanding nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid Note,
the amount paid up) from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date and such interest will be
payable in arrear on either:

(A) the Specified Interest Payment Date(s) (each an “Interest Payment Date”} in each year
specified hereon; or

(B) if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement,
each date (each an “Interest Payment Date™) which falls the number of months or ather
period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Pricing Supplement after the
preceding Interest Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the
Interest Commencement Date.

Such interest will be payable in respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall, in these
Terms and Conditions, mean the period from (and including) an Interest Payment Date (or the
Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Payment Date).

If a business day convention is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement and (x) if there is no
numerically corresponding day on the calendar month in which an Interest Payment Date should
occur or (y) if any Interest Payment Date would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day,
then, if the business day convention specified is:

(1) in any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with Condition 5(Z)}i)(B)
above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest Payment Date (i) in the case of (x)
above, shall be the last day that is 2 Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions
of (B} below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (i1) in the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to
the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar
month, in which event (A) such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day and (B) each subsequent Interest Payment Date shall be
the last Business Day in the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding
applicable Interest Payment Date; or

{2) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be postponed to
the next day which is a Business Day; or

(3) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be
postponed to the next day which is a2 Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next
calendar month, in which event such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day; or

(4) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Payment Date shall be brought forward
to the immediately preceding Business Day.

In these Conditions, “Business Day” means a day which is:

(A) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open
for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in
London and any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
and

(B) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on
which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
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principal financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than
London and any Additional Business Centre and which if the Specified Currency is
Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney or Auckland, respectively) or (2)
in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open. In
these Conditions, “TARGET System” means the Trans-European Automated Real-Time
Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET) System.

(ii) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes and Index Linked
Interest Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(A) ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner in
which the Rate of Interest 1s to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will be
the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated hereon) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of
this sub-paragraph (A), “ISDA Rate” for an Interest Period means a rate equal to the Floating Rate
that would be determined by the Agent under an interest rate swap transaction if the Agent were
acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an agreement
incorporating the 2000 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. each as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the
Notes, (the “ISDA Definitions™) and under which:

(1) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement;
(2) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement; and

(3) the relevant Reset Date is either (i} if the applicable Floating Rate Option is based on the
London inter-bank offered rate (“LIBOR”) or on the Euro-zone inter-bank offered rate
(“EURIBOR”) for a currency, the first day of that Interest Period or (ii) in any other case, as
specified hereon.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (A), “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”, “Floating Rate
Option”, “Designated Maturity” and “Reset Date” have the meanings given to those terms in the
ISDA Definitions.

(B) Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as the manner
in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of Interest for each Interest Period will,
subject as provided below, be either:

(1)  the offered quotation; or

(2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being
rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum} for the Reference Rate which appears or appear, as the
case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page as at 11.00 a.m. {London time, in the case of LIBOR, or
Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or
minus (as indicated hereon) the Margin (if any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent. If
five or more of such offered quotations are avaifable on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or,
if there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (o1, if
there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by
the Calculation Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided
above) of such offered quotations.

If the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of Condition 5@)Nii)B)(1), no such
offered quotation appears or, in the case of Condition 5@)(ii)(B)2), fewer than three such offered
quotations appeat, in each case as at the time specified above the Calculation Agent shall request
each of the Reference Banks to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed
as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate at approximately the Specified Time on the
Interest Determination Date in question. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with such offered quotations, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall
be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place with 0.000005 being

16




rounded upwards) of such offered quotations plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), all
as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Interest Determination Date one only or none of the Reference Banks provides the
Calculation Agent with such offered quotations as provided in the preceding paragraph, the Rate
of Interest for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate per annum which the Calculation
Agent determines as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place,
with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as communicated to (and at the request of)
the Calculation Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks
were offered, at approximately the Specified Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date,
deposits in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the
Reference Rate by leading banks in the London inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate 1s LIBOR)
or the Eurozone inter-bank market {if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as
appropriate) the Margin (if any) or, if fewer than two of the Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with such offered rates, the offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency
for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, or the arithmetic
mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered rates for deposits in the Specified Currency for a
period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, at which, at approximately
the Specified Time on the relevant Interest Determination Date, any one or more banks (which
bank or banks is or are in the opinion of the Issuer suitable for such purpose) informs the
Calculation Agent it is quoting to leading banks in the London inter-bank market (if the
Reference Rate is LIBOR) or the Euro-zone inter-bank market (if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR)
plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), provided that, if the Rate of Interest cannot be
determined in accordance with the foregoing provisions of this paragraph, the Rate of Interest shall
be determined as at the last preceding Interest Determination Date (though substituting, where a
different Margin is to be applied to the relevant Interest Period from that which applied to the
last preceding Interest Period, the Margin relating to the relevant Interest Period, in place of the
Margin relating to that last preceding Interest Period).

“Reference Banks” means, in the case of a determination of LIBOR, the principal London office of
four major banks in the London inter-bank market and, in the case of a determination of
EURIBOR, the prncipal Euro-zone office of four major banks in the Euro-zone inter-bank
market, in each case selected by the Calculation Agent or as specified hereon.

If the Reference Rate from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes is specified in the
applicable Pricing Supplement as being other than LIBOR or EURIBOR, the Rate of Interest in
respect of such Notes will be determined as provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

(iii} Minimum and/or Maximum Rate of Interest

If a Minimum Rate of Interest is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement for any Interest Period,
then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance
with the provisions of paragraph (i) above is less than such Minimum Rate of Interest, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Rate of Interest.

If a Maximum Rate of Interest is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement for any Interest Period,
then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in accordance
with the provisions of paragraph (ii} above is greater than such Maximum Rate of Interest, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Rate of Interest.

{iv) Determination of Rate of Interest and calculation of Interest Amounts

The Calculation Agent will at or as soon as practicable after each time at which the Rate of Interest is to
be determined, determine the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period.

The Calculation Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the “Interest Amount”) payable on the
Floating Rate Notes in respect of each Specified Denomination for the relevant Interest Period. Each
Interest Amount shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination,
multiplying such sum by the applicable Floating Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure
to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded
upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention.

“Floating Day Count Fraction” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest in
accordance with the Condition 5(b):
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(1) if “Actual/365” or “Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
actual number of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that
Interest Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that portion
of the Interest Period falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual number of days
in that portion of the Interest Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(i1) if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number
of days in the Interest Period divided by 365;

(1) if “Actual/365 (Sterling)” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number
of days in the Interest Period divided by 365 or, in the case of an Interest Payment Date falling
in a leap year, 366;

(iv) if “Actual/360” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the actual number of days
in the Interest Period divided by 360;

(v) 1f “30/3607, “360/360” or “Bond Basis” is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the
number of days in the Interest Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on
the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unfess (a) the last day of the Interest
Period is the 31st day of 2 month but the first day of the Interest Period s a day other than
the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last day shall not
be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (b} the last day of the Interest Period is
the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of February shall not be
considered to be lengthened to a 3G-day month)); and

(w1) if “30E/360™ or “Eurobond Basis” is specified hereon, the number of days in the Interest
Periad divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the basts of a year of 360
days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or last day of the
Interest Period unless, in the case of an Interest Period ending on the Maturity Date, the
Maturity Date is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of
February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month).

(v) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amounts

The Calculation Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each Interest Period
and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer and any stock exchange on which the
relevant Floating Rate Notes are for the time being listed and notice thereof to be published in
accordance with Condition 14 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than
the fourth London Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so
notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of
adjustment) without prior notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any
such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock exchange on which the relevant Floating Rate
Notes or Index Linked Interest Notes are for the time being listed and to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 14. For the purposes of this paragraph, the expression “London Business Day” means a
day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which banks and foreign exchange markets are open for
general business in London.

{vi) Certificates to be final

All certificates, communications, opinions, determinations, calculations, quotations and decisions given,
expressed, made or obtained for the purposes of the provisions of this Condition 5(%), shall (in the
absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, [the Guarantor,] the
Calculation Agent, the other Agents and all Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders and (in
the absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Issuer, [the Guarantor,] the Noteholders, the Receiptholders
or the Couponholders shall attach to the Calculation Agent in connection with the exercise or non-
exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

(¢ Accrual of interest

Each Note (or in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note, that part only of such Note) will
cease to bear interest (if any) from the date for its redemption unless, upon due presentation thereof,
payment of principal is improperly withheld or refused. In such event, interest will continue to accrue
until whichever is the earlier of:

(1) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Note have been paid; and
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(2) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable has been received by the
Calculation Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, and notice to that effect has been given in
accordance with Condition 14.

6. Redemption, Purchase and Options
(@) Redemption by Instalments and Final Redemption

{i) Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided in this Condition 6 or the
relevant Instalment Date (being one of the dates so specified hereon) is extended pursuant to any
Issuer’s or Noteholder’s option in accordance with Condition 6{2) or 6(e}, each Note that provides
for Instalment Dates and Instalment Amounts shall be partially redeemed on each Instalment Date
at the related Instalment Amount specified hereon. The outstanding principal amount of each such
Note shall be reduced by the Instalment Amount (or, if such Instalment Amount is calculated by
reference to a proportion of the principal amount of such Note, such proportion) for all purposes
with effect from the related Instalment Date, unless payment of the Instalment Amount is
improperly withheld or refused on presentation of the related Receipt, in which case, such amount
shall remain outstanding until the Relevant Date relating to such Instalment Amount.

(1) Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled as provided below or its maturity is extended
pursuant to any Issuer’s or Noteholder’s option in accordance with Condition 6(d) or 6(g), each
Note shall be finally redeemed on the Maturity Date specified hereon at its Final Redemption
Amount (which, unless otherwise provided, is its principal amount) or, in the case of a Note
falling within paragraph (1) above, its final Instalment Amount.

(#)  Early Redemption Amounts and Late Payment of Zero Coupon Notes
The Early Redemption Amount of each Note will be calculated as follows:

(i) in the case of a Note with a Final Redemption Amount equal to the Issue Price, at the
Final Redemption Amount thereof;

(1) in the case of a Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note but including an Instalment Note and Partly
Paid Note) with a Final Redemption Amount which is or may be less or greater than the Issue Price
or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which the Notes are denominated, at
the amount specified hereon, or determined in the manner specified hereon or, if no such amount
or manner is so specified, at its nominal amount; or

(ii1) in the case of a Zero Coupon Note, at an amount (the “Amortised Face Amount™) equal to the
sum of:

(A) the Reference Price; and

(B} the product of the Accrual Yield (compounded annually) being applied to the Reference Price
from (and including) the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes to (but excluding) the
date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such Note becomes
due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period which is not a whole number of years, it shall be
made on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each or on such other
calculation basis as may be specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement.

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such Zero Coupon
Note is improperly withheld or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon
Note shall be the amount calculated as provided in paragraph (B)iii) above as though the references
therein to the date fixed for the redemption or the date upon which such Zero Coupon Note becomes
due and payable were replaced by references to the date which is the earlier of:

(i) the date on which all amounts due in respect of such Zero Coupon Note have been paid; and

(1) five days after the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable in respect of such
Zero Coupon Notes has been received by the Fiscal Agent or the Registrar and notice to that
effect has been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14.
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(c)  Redemption for Taxation Reasons

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Issuer in whole, but not in part, at any time (if this is
not a Floating Rate Note) or on any Interest Payment Date (if this is a Floating Rate Note) or, if so
specified hereon, at any time, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to the
Noteholders (which notice shall be imrevocable), at their Redemption Amount (together with interest
accrued to the date fixed for redemption), if (i) the Issuer [(or, if the Guarantee were called, the
Guarantor)] has or will become obliged to pay additional amounts as provided or referred to in
Condition 8 as a result of any change in, or amendment to, the laws or regulations of the United
Kingdom *[or the Netherlands] or any change in the application or official interpretation of such laws
or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after the Issue Date and (ii) such
obligation cannot be avoided by the Issuer [(or the Guarantor, as the case may be)| taking reasonable
measures available to it, provided that no such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days
prior to the earliest date on which the Issuer (or the Guarantor, as the case may be) would be obliged to
pay such additional amounts were a payment in respect of the Notes [(or the Guarantee, as the case may
be)] then due. Before the publication of any notice of redemption pursuant to this paragraph, the Issuer
shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent a certificate signed by two Directors of the Issuer [(or the Guarantor, as
the case may be)] stating that the Issuer is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement
of facts showing that the conditions precedent to the right of the Issuer so to redeem have occurred, and
an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised standing to the effect that the Issuer [(or the
Guarantor, as the case may be)] has or will become obliged to pay such additional amounts as a result
of such change or amendment.

(d)  Redemption at the Option of the Issuer (Tssuer Call} and Exercise of Issuer’s Options

If so provided in the applicable Pricing Supplement, the Issuer may, on giving irrevocable notice to the
Noteholders, redeem, or exercise any Issuer’s option in relation to, all or, if so provided, some of the
Notes in the prncipal amount or integral multiples thereof and on the date or dates so provided. Any
such redemption of Notes shall be at their Final Redemption Amount together with interest accrued to
the date fixed for redemption.

All Notes in respect of which any such notice is given shall be redeemed, or the Issuer’s option shall be
exercised, on the date specified in such notice in accordance with this Condition.

In the case of a partial redemption or a partial exercise of an Issuer’s option, the notice to Noteholders
shall also contain the certificate numbers of the Notes to be redeemed or in respect of which such option
has been exercised, which shall have been drawn in such place and in such manner as may be fair and
reasonable in the circumstances, taking account of prevailing market practices, subject to compliance with
any applicable laws and stock exchange requirements.

(¢)  Redemption at the Option of Notcholders (Investor Put) and Exercise of Noteholders® Options

If so provided hereon, the Issuer shall, at the option of the holder of any such Note, redeem such Note
on the date or dates so provided at its Final Redemption Amount together with interest accrued to the
date fixed for redemption.

To exercise such option or any other Noteholders’ option that may be set out hereon the holder must
deposit (in the case of Bearer Notes) such Note (together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and
unexchanged Talons) with any Paying Agent or (in the case of Registered Notes) the Certificate
representing such Note(s) with the Registrar or any Transfer Agent at its specified office, together with a
duly completed option exercise notice (“Exercise Notice™) in the form obtainable from any Paying Agent,
the Registrar or any Transfer Agent (as applicable). No Note or Certificate so deposited and option
exercised may be withdrawn (except as provided in the Agency Agreement) without the prior consent of
the Issuer.

) Purchases

The Issuer], the Guarantor] and any of [its/their] subsidiaries may at any time purchase Notes (provided
that all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons relating thereto are attached thereto
or surrendered therewith) in the open market or otherwise at any price.

(® Cancellation

All Notes purchased by or on behalf of the Issuer|, the Guarantor] or any of [its/their] respective
subsidiaries may be sutrendered for cancellation, in the case of Bearer Notes, by surrendering each such
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Note together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and all unexchanged Talons to the Fiscal Agent
and, in the case of Registered Notes, by surrendering the Certificate representing such Notes to the
Registrar and, in each case, if so surrendered, shall, together with all Notes redeemed by the Issuer, be
cancelled forthwith (together with all unmatured Receipts and Coupons and unexchanged Talons
attached thereto or surrendered therewith). Any Notes so surrendered for cancellation may not be

reissued or resold and the obligations of the Issuer [and the Guarantor] in respect of any such Notes
shall be discharged.

7. Payments and Talons
(@) Bearer Notes

Payments of principal and interest in respect of Bearer Notes shall, subject as mentioned below, be made
against presentation and surrender of the relevant Receipts (in the case of payments of Instalment
Amounts other than on the due date for redemption and provided that the Receipt is presented for
payment together with its relative Note), Notes (in the case of all other payments of principal and, in
the case of interest, as specified in Condition 7(f}(vi)) or Coupons (in the case of interest, save as
specified in Condition 7(f)(i1)), as the case may be, at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside
the United States (A) in the case of a Specified Currency other than euro, by a cheque payable in such
Specified Currency in which such payment is due drawn on, or, at the option of the holder, by transfer
to an account denominated in such Specified Currency with, a bank in the principal financial centre for
such Specified Currency provided that in the case of Japanese yen, the transfer shall be to a non-resident
Japanese yen account with an authorised foreign exchange bank (in the case of payment to a non-resident
of Japan); and (B) in the case of euro, by credit or transfer to a euro account {or any other account to
which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a
euro cheque.

(&)  Registered Notes

(i) Payments of principal (which for the purposes of this Condition 7(%) shall include final Instalment
Amounts but not other Instalment Amounts) in respect of Registered Notes shall be made against
presentation and surrender of the relevant Certificates at the specified office of any of the Transfer
Agents or of the Registrar and in the manner provided in paragraph {ii) below.

(i) Interest (which for the purpose of this Condition 7(5) shall include all Instalment Amounts other
than final Instalment Amounts) on Registered Notes shall be paid to the person shown on the
Register at the close of business on the fifteenth day before the due date for payment thereof (the
“Record Date™). Payments of interest on each Registered Note shall be made in the Specified
Currency in which such payments are due by cheque drawn on 2 bank (in the case of payment in
a Specified Currency other than euro) in the principal financial centre of the country of such
Specified Currency concemed and (in the case of payment in euro) any bank which processes
payments in euro and mailed to the holder (or to the first named of joint holders) of such Note
at its address appearing in the Register. Upon application by the holder to the specified office of
the Registrar or any Transfer Agent before the Record Date and subject as provided in paragraph
{a) above, such payment of interest may be made by transfer to an account in the relevant
currency maintained by the payee with a bank in the principal financial centre of the country of
that currency.

(¢) Payments in the United States

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Bearer Notes are denominated in U.S. dollars, payments in respect
thereof may be made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in New York City in the same manner as
aforesaid if (1) the Issuer shall have appointed Paying Agents with specified offices outside the United
States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying Agents would be able to make payment of the
amounts on the Notes in the manner provided above when due, (ii) payment in full of such amounts
at all such offices is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar restrictions on
payment or receipt of such amounts and (i) such payment is then permitted by United States law,
without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer, any adverse tax consequence to the Issuer.

(d) Payments Subject to Fiscal Laws

All payments are subject in all cases to any applicable fiscal or other laws, regulations and directives, but
without prejudice to the provisions of Condition 8. No commission or expenses shall be charged to the
Noteholders or Couponholders in respect of such payments.
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(¢)  Appoiniment of Agents

The Fiscal Agent, the Paying Agents, the Registrar, the Transfer Agents and the Calculation Agent initially
appointed by the Issuer [and the Guarantor] and their respective specified offices are listed below. The
Fiscal Agent, the Paying Agents, the Registrar, Transfer Agents and the Calculation Agent act solely as
agents of the Issuer and the Guarantor and do not assume any obligation or relationship of agency or
trust for or with any Noteholder or Couponholder. The Issuer and the Guarantor reserve the right at
any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent, any other Paying Agent, the
Registrar, any Transfer Agent or the Calcunlation Agent and to appoint additional or other Paying
Agents or Transfer Agents, provided that the Issuer shall at all times maintain (i) a Fiscal Agent, (i) a
Registrar in relation to Registered Notes, (iii) a Transfer Agent in relation to Registered Notes, (iv) one
or more Calculation Agent(s) where the Conditions so require, (v) Paying Agents having specified
offices in at least two major European cities (including London so long as the Notes are listed on the
Official List of the UK Listing Authority), (vi) such other agents as may be required by any other stock
exchange on which the Notes may be listed and (vii) if any European Union Directive on the taxation of
savings implementing the conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26-27 November, 2000 or any
law implementing or complying with, or introduced 1n order to conform to such Directive 1s introduced,
the Issuer will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent in an EUJ Member State that will not be obliged to
withhold or deduct tax pursuant to any such Directive or law.

In addition, the Issuer and the Guarantor shall forthwith appoint a Paying Agent in New York City in
respect of any Bearer Notes denominated in U.S. dollars in the circumstances described in paragraph (¢}
above.

Notice of any such change or any change of any specified office shall promptly be given to the
Noteholders.

() Unmatured Coupons and Receipts and unexchanged Talons

(1) Unless the Notes provide that the relative Coupons are to become void upon the due date for
redemption of those Notes, Bearer Notes should be surrendered for payment together with all
unmatured Coupons (if any) appertaining thereto, failing which an amount equal to the face value
of each missing unmatured Coupon (or, in the case of payment not being made in full, that
proportion of the amount of such missing unmatured Coupon that the sum of prncipal so paid
bears to the total principal due) shall be deducted from the Final Redemption Amount due for
payment. Any amount so deducted shall be paid in the manner mentioned above against
surrender of such missing Coupon within a period of 10 years from the Relevant Date for the
payment of such principal (whether or not such Coupon has become void pursuant to
Condition 9).

(i) If the Notes so provide, upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note, unmatured
Coupons relating to such Note (whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall
be made in respect of them.

(iii) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note, any unexchanged Talon relating to such
Note (whether or not attached) shall become void and no Coupon shall be delivered in respect of
sach Talon.

(iv) Upon the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note that is redeemable in instalments, all
Receipts relating to such Note having an Instalment Date falling on or after such due date
(whether or not attached) shall become void and no payment shall be made in respect of them.

(v) Where any Bearer Note that provides that the relative unmatured Coupons are to become void
upon the due date for redemption of those Notes is presented for redemption without all
unmatured Coupons and any unexchanged Talon relating to it, and where any Bearer Note is
presented for redemption without any unexchanged Talon relating to it, redemption shall be made
only against the provision of such indemnity as the Issuer may require.

(vi) If the due date for redemption of any Note is not a due date for payment of interest, interest
accrued from the preceding due date for payment of interest or the Interest Commencement Date,
as the case may be, shall only be payable against presentation (and surrender if appropriate) of the
relevant Bearer Note or Certificate representing it, as the case may be. Interest accrued on a Note
that only bears interest after its Maturity Date shall be payable on redemption of such Note against
presentation of the relevant Note or Certificate representing it, as the case may be.
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(g Talons

On or after the Interest Payment Date for the final Coupon forming part of a Coupon sheet issued in
respect of any Bearer Note, the Talon forming part of such Coupon sheet may be surrendered at the
specified office of the Fiscal Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet (and, if necessary, another
Talon for a further Coupon sheet) (but excluding any Coupens that may have become void pursuant
to Condition 9).

(B}  Payment Days

If any date for payment in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is not a Payment Day, the holder
shall not be entitled to payment until the next following business day nor to any interest or other sum
in respect of such postponed payment. In this paragraph, “Payment Day” means a day which (subject to
Condition 9) is:

(1) 2 day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in:

(A) the relevant place of presentation;
(B) London;
(C) any Additional Firancial Centre specified hereon; and

{ii) either (1) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in the principal financial centre of
the country of the relevant Specified Currency (if other than the place of presentation, London and
any Additional Financial Centre and which if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or
New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney or Auckland, respectively) or (2) in relation to any sum
payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET System is open.

8. Taxation

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons [or under
the Guarantee] shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes,
duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or
assessed by or within the United Kingdom *[or the Netherlands] or any authority *[thereof/of either]
or *[therein/in either] having power to tax, unless such withholding or deduction is required by law. In
that event, the Issuer [or, as the case may be, the Guarantor] shall pay such additional amounts as shall
result in receipt by the Noteholders and the Couponholders of such amounts as would have been
received by them had no such withholding or deduction been required, except that no such additional
amoutts shall be payable with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon:

(@) to, or to a third party on behalf of, a holder who is hiable to such taxes, duties, assessments or
govemmental charges in respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some
connection with the United Kingdom [or the Netherlands, as the case may be] other than the
mere holding of the Note, Receipt or Coupon; or

(b) presented for payment in the *[United Kingdom/Netherlands}; or

{c) presented (or in respect of which the Certificate representing it is presented) for payment more than
30 days after the Relevant Date except to the extent that the holder of it would have been entitled
to such additional amounts on presenting it for payment on the thirtieth such day; or

{d) where such withholding or deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to
be made pursuant to any European Union Directive on the taxation of savings implementing the
conclusions of the ECOFIN Council meeting of 26-27 November 2000 or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive or law; or

(&) presented for payment by or on behalf of a holder who would be able to avoid such withholding or
deduction by presenting the relevant Note, Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a
Member State of the European Union.

As used in these Conditions, “Relevant Date” in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon means the date
on which payment in respect of it first becomes due, except that, if the full amount of the moneys
payable has not been duly recetved by the Fiscal Agent on or prior to such due date, it means the date
on which, the full amount of such moneys having been so received, notice to that effect is duly given to
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the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 14. References in these Conditions to (1) “principal” shall
be deemed to include any premium payable in respect of the Notes, all Instalment Amounts, Final
Redemption Amounts, Early Redemption Amounts, Amortised Face Amounts and all other amounts in
the nature of principal payable pursuant to Condition 6 or any amendment or supplement to it, (ii)
“interest” shall be deemed to include all interest amounts and all other amounts payable pursuant to
Condition 5 or any amendment or supplement to it and (iii) “principal” and/or “interest™ shall be
deemed to include any additional amounts that may be payable under this Condition.

9.  Prescription

Claims against the Issuer [and the Guarantor] for payment in respect of the Notes, Receipts and Coupons
(which for this purpose shall not include Talons) shall be prescribed and become void unless made
within 10 years (in the case of principal) or five years (in the case of interest) from the appropriate
Relevant Date in respect of them.

10. Events of Default

If any of the following events (“Events of Default”) occurs, the holder of any Note may give wrtten
notice to the Fiscal Agent at its specified office that such Note is immediately repayable, whereupon the
Early Redemption Amount of such Note together with accrued interest to the date of payment shall
become immediately due and payable, unless such event of default shall have been remedied prior to
the receipt of such notice by the Fiscal Agent:

(i) there is a failure for more than 14 days in the payment of principal or interest in respect of the
Notes or any of them when and as the same ought to be paid; or

(i) there is a failure by the Issuer [or the Guarantor] to perform or observe any covenant, condition or
provision contained in the [Agency Agreement] or in the Notes or the Coupons and on its part to
be performed or observed (other than the obligation to pay principal or interest in respect of any of
the Notes) and such failure continues unremedied for a period of 30 days; or

(ii) any indebtedness for borrowed moneys contracted by the Issuer Jor the Guarantor] becomes due
prior to its stated maturity by reason of a failure to observe the terms thereof or any such
indebtedness is not paid at its stated matunty (or within any applicable grace period thereof) or
there is a failure by the Issuer [or the Guarantor] to make any payment due under any guarantee
and/or indemnity given by it in respect of any indebtedness for borrowed moneys, in each case
having an aggregate principal amount in excess of U.S.$50,000,000 or its equivalent in other
currencies; or

(iv) a resolution is passed or an order of a court of competent jurisdiction is made for the winding-up or
dissolution or administration of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] (otherwise than for the purposes of a
reconstruction, merger or consolidation the terms whereof have previously been approved by an
Extraordinary Resolution of the Noteholders); or

{(v) an incumbrancer takes possession or a receiver is appointed of the whole or any material part of the
assets or undertaking of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] and is not paid out in full or discharged
within seven days; or

(vi) a distress, execution or other process is levied or enforced upon or sued out against the whole or
any material part of the property of the Issuer [or the Guarantor] and is not discharged within 90
days thereof; or

(vii) the Issuer [or the Guarantor] stops payment or (otherwise than for the purposes of such a
reconstruction, merger or consolidation as is referred to in paragraph (iv) of this Condition) ceases
or threatens to cease to carry on business or is unable to pay its debts, proposes or makes a general
assignment or an arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of the relevant creditors in
respect of any such debts or a moratorium is agreed or declared in respect of or affecting all or
any part of (or a particular type of} the debts of the Issuer {or the Guarantor]; or

{viii) proceedings are initiated against the Issuer [or the Guarantor] under any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, composition or other similar laws and such proceedings are not discharged or stayed
within a period of 60 days; or

(ix) the Issuer [or the Guarantor] initiates or consents to proceedings relating to itself under any
applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, composition or other similar laws or makes a conveyance or
assignment for the benefit of, or enters into any composition with, its creditors generally; or

24




(x) any event occurs that under the laws of any relevant jurisdiction has an analogous effect to any of
the events referred to in any of the foregoing paragraphs (iv) to (ix) (inclusive); or

(xi) the Guarantee is not (or is claimed by the Guarantor not to be) in full force and effect.

11. Meeting of Noteholders and Modifications
{a) Meetings of Noteholders

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of Noteholders to consider any
matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary Resolution (as defined in the
Agency Agreement) of a2 modification of any of these Conditions. Such a meeting may be convened by
Noteholders holding not less than 10 per cent. in principal amount of the Notes for the time being
outstanding. The quorum for any meeting convened to consider an Extraordinary Resolution shall be
two or more persons holding or representing a clear majority in principal amount of the Notes for the
time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting two or more persons being or representing
Noteholders whatever the principal amount of the Notes held or represented, unless the business of
such meeting includes consideration of proposals, inter alia, (i) to amend the dates of maturity or
redemption of the Notes, any Instalment Date or any date for payment of interest on the Notes, (ii) to
reduce or cancel the principal amount of, or any Instalment Amount of, or any premium payable on
redemption of, the Notes, (iii) to reduce the rate or rates of interest in respect of the Notes or to vary
the method or basis of calculating the rate or rates or amount of interest in respect of the Notes, (iv) if
a Minimum and/or a Maximum Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount, Farly Redemption Amount or
Final Redemption Amount is shown hereon, to reduce any such Minimum and/or Maximum, (v} to
vary any method of, or basis for, calculating the Early Redemption Amount or Final Redemption
Amount, including the method of calculating the Amortised Face Amount, (vi) to vary the currency or
currencies of payment or denomination of the Notes, (vil) to take any steps that as specified hereon may
only be taken following approval by an Extraordinary Resolution to which the special quorum provisions
applyl,/or] (vii) to modify the provisions concemning the quorum required at any meeting of
Noteholders or the majority required to pass the Extraordinary Resolution, (or (ix) to modify or cancel
the Guarantee,] in which case the necessary quorum shall be two or more persons holding or representing
not less than 75 per cent., or at any adjourned meeting not less than 25 per cent., in principal amount of
the Notes for the time being outstanding. Any Extraordinary Resolution duly passed shall be binding on
Noteholders (whether or not they were present at the meeting at which such resolution was passed) and
on all Couponholders.

These Conditions may be amended, modified or varied in relation to any Series of Notes by the terms of the relevant
Pricing Supplement in relation to such Series.

(b)) Modification of Agency Agreement

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall only permit any modification of, or any waiver or authonsation of
any breach or proposed breach of or any failure to comply with, the Agency Agreement, if to de so could
not reasonably be expected to be prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders.

12. Replacement of Notes, Certificates, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

1t a Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon is lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed, it may be
replaced, subject to applicable laws, regulations and stock exchange regulations, at the specified office of
the Fiscal Agent (in the case of Bearer Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons) and of the Registrar (in the
case of Certificates) or such other Paying Agent or Transfer Agent, as the case may be, as may from time
to time be designated by the Issuer for the purpose and notice of whose designation is given to
Noteholders, in each case on payment by the claimant of the fees and costs incumred in connection
therewith and on such terms as to evidence, security and indemnity (which may provide, ntfer afia, that
if the allegedly lost, stolen or destroyed Note, Certificate, Receipt, Coupon or Talon is subsequently
presented for payment or, as the case may be, for exchange for further Coupons, there shall be paid to
the Issuer on demand the amount payable by the Issuer in respect of such Notes, Certificates, Receipts,
Coupons or further Coupons) and otherwise as the Issuer may require. Mutilated or defaced Notes,
Certificates, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before replacements will be issued.

13. Forther Issues

The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders create and
issue further notes having the same terms and conditions as the Notes (so that, for the avoidance of
doubt, references in the conditions of such Notes to “Issue Date” shall be to the first issue date of the
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Notes) and so that the same shall be consolidated and form a single series with such Notes, and
references in these Conditions to “Notes™ shall be construed accordingly.

14. Notices

Notices to the holders of Registered Notes shall be mailed to them at their respective addresses in the
Register and deemed to have been given on the fourth weekday (being a day other than a Saturday or
Sunday) after the date of mailing. Notices to the holders of Bearer Notes shall be valid if published in
a leading English Language daily newspaper of general circulation in London (Wthh is expected to be the
Financial Times). If any such publication is not practicable in either case, notice shall be validly given if
published in another leading daily English language newspaper with general circulation in Europe. Any
such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication or, if published more
than once or on different dates, on the date of the first publication as provided above.

Couponholders shall be deemed for all purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given to the
holders of Bearer Notes in accordance with this Condition.

15. Redenomination and Exchange

(a) Redenomination

Whete redenomination is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the relevant
Issuer may, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders of the
relevant issue, on giving at least 30 days’ prior notice to the relevant Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 14, elect that, with effect from the Redenomination Date specified in the notice, the Notes
shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

(i) each Specified Denomination will be deemed to be denominated in such amount of euro as is
equivalent to its denomination in the Specified Currency at the Established Rate, subject to such
provisions (if any) as to rounding (and payments in respect of fractions consequent on rounding) as
the relevant Issuer may decide, after consultation with the Principal Paying Agent, and as may be
specified in the notice provided that such rounding is not matenally prejudicial to the Noteholders;

(ii) after the Redenomination Date, all payments in respect of the Notes, the Receipts and the Coupons
will be made solely in euro, including payments of interest in respect of periods before the
Redenomination Date, as though references in the Notes to the Specified Currency were to euro.
Accordingly, payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a euro account (or any other
account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified by the payee. Neither the relevant
Issuer nor any Agent shall be liable to any Noteholder or other person for any commissions, costs,
losses or expenses in relation to or resulting from the credit or transfer of euro or any currency
conversion or rounding effected in connection therewith;

(i) if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or after the
Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period other than a Fixed Interest Period,
it will be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying
such sum by the applicable Fixed Day Count Fraction (as defined in Condition 5(2)), and rounding
the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of any such sub-
unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market convention; and

(iv) if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes, are specified hereon any relevant changes to the provisions
relating to interest; and

{(v) such other changes shall be made to the terms and conditions of the Notes as the relevant Issuer
may decide, after consultation with the Principal Paying Agent, and as may be specified in the
notice, to conform them to conventions then applicable to instruments denominated in euro or
to enable the Notes to be consolidated with one or more issues of other notes, whether or not
originally denominated in the Specified Currency or euro.

(B)  Exchange

Where exchange is specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement as being applicable, the relevant Issuer
may, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders of the relevant
issue, on giving not less than 30 days’ prior notice to the relevant Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 14, elect that, with effect from the Redenomination Date specified in the notice, the Notes
shall be exchangeable for Notes expressed to be denominated in euro in accordance with such
arrangements as the relevant Issuer may decide, after consultation with the Principal Paying Agent, and
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as may be specified in the notice, including arrangements under which Receipts and Coupons unmatured
at the date so specified become void. For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the provisions
of sub-paragraph (a)(i) above, any such exchange shall not give rise to any rounding.

(©  Definitions
In this Condition, the following expressions have the following meanings:

“Established Rate” means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency (including compliance
with rules relating to roundings in accordance with applicable European Community regulations) into
euro established by the Council of the European Union pursuant to Article 123 of the Treaty;

“euro” means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of economic and monetary union
pursuant to the Treaty;

“Redenomination Date” means a date for payment of interest under the Notes specified by the Isszer in
the notice given to the Noteholders pursuant to paragraph (a) or, as the case may be, () above which falls
on or after the start of the third stage of economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty or, if the
country of the Specified Custrency is not one of the countries then participating in such third stage,
which falls on or after such later date as it does so participate; and

“Treaty” means the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on
European Union and as amended by the Treaty of Amsterdam.

16. Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No rights are conferred on any person under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce
any term of the Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons, but this does not affect any nght or remedy of a
third party which exists or which is available apart from that Act.

17. Governing Law *{and Jurisdiction]
{a) Governing Law

The Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons and the Talons are governed by, and shall be construed in
accordance with, English law.

®)  [urisdiction

The courts of England are to have junisdiction to settle any disputes that may anse out of or in
connection with any Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons and accordingly any legal action or
proceedings arising out of or in connection with any Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons
(“Proceedings™) may be brought in such courts. The Issuer irrevocably subsmits to the jurisdiction of the
courts of England and waives any objection to Proceedings in such courts on the ground of venue or on
the ground that the Proceedings have been brought in an inconvenient forum. This submission is made
for the benefit of each of the holders of the Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons and shall not affect the
right of any of them to take Proceedings in any other court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the taking
of Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any other jurisdiction
{whether concurrently or not).

(c)  Service of Process

The Issuer irrevocably appoints the Guarantor of 9 Millbank, London SW1P 3JF (Attention: Company
Secretary of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC} as its agent in England to receive, for it and on its behalf,
service of process in any Proceedings in England. Such service shall be deemed completed on delivery to
such process agent (whether or not it is forwarded to and received by the Issuer). If for any reason such
process agent ceases to be able to act as such or no longer has an address in London, the Issuer
irrevocably agrees to appoint a substitute process agent and shall immediately notify Noteholders of
such appointment in accordance with Condition 14. Nothing shall affect the right to serve process in
any manner permitted by law.]
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SUMMARY OF PROVISIONS
RELATING TO THE NOTES WHILE IN GLOBAL FORM

Initial Issue of Notes

Upon the initial deposit of a Global Note with a common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg (the “Common Depositary”) or registtation of Registered Notes in the name of any
nominee for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and delivery of the relative Global Certificate to
the Common Depositary, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg will credit each subscriber with a
principal amount of Notes equal to the principal amount thereof for which it has subscribed and paid.
Permanent Global Notes shall be issued in compliance with the C Rales.

Relationship of Acconntholders with Clearing Systems

Unless otherwise provided herein, each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg, an Approved Intermediary or any other clearing system as the holder of a Note
represented by a Global Note or a Global Certificate must look solely to Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg or such Approved Intermediary or clearing system (as the case may be) for his share of
each payment made by the Issuer to the bearer of such Global Note or the holder of the underlying
Registered Notes, as the case may be, and in relation to all other rghts arising under the Global Notes
or Global Certificates, subject to and in accordance with the respective rules and procedures of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or such clearing system (as the case may be). Such persons shall have no claim
directly against the Issuer in respect of payments due on the Notes for so long as the Notes are
represented by such Global Note or Global Certificate and such obligations of the Issuer will be
discharged by payment to the bearer of such Global Note or the holder of the underlying Registered
Notes, as the case may be, in respect of each amount so paid.

Exchange

1.  Temporary Global Notes

Each temporary Global Note will be exchangeable, free of charge to the holder, on or after its Exchange
Date:

1.1  if the relevant Pricing Supplement indicates that such Global Note is issued in compliance with the
C Rules in whole, but not in part, for the Definitive Notes defined and described below; and

1.2 otherwise, in whole or in part upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership in the form set
out in the Agency Agreement for interests in a permanent Global Note or, if so provided in the
relevant Pricing Supplement, for Definitive Notes.

Each temporary Global Note that is also an Exchangeable Bearer Note will be exchangeable for
Registered Notes in accordance with the Conditions in addition to any permanent Global Note or
Definitive Notes for which it may be exchangeable and, before its Exchange Date, will also be
exchangeable in whole or in part for Registered Notes only.

2. Permanent Global Notes

Each permanent Global Note will be exchangeable, free of charge to the holder, on or after its Exchange
Date in whole but not, except as provided under “Partial Exchange of Permanent Globai Notes™, in part
for Definitive Notes or, in the case of 2.3 below, Registered Notes:

2.1 unless prncipal in respect of any Notes is not paid when due, by the Issuer giving notice to the
Noteholders, the Fiscal Agent of its intention to effect such exchange;

2.2 if the relevant Pricing Supplement provides that such Global Note is exchangeable at the request of
the holder (including the holder of a Note represented by a permanent Global Note), by the holder
giving notice to the Fiscal Agent of its election for such exchange; and

2.3  if the permanent Global Note is an Exchangeable Bearer Note, by the hoider (including the hoider
of a Note represented by a permanent Global Note} giving notice to the Fiscal Agent of its election
to exchange the whole or a part of such Global Note for Registered Notes; and

24 otherwise, (1) if the permanent Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg or any other clearing system {an “Alternative Clearing System™) cleaning system is
closed for business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory
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or otherwise) or announces an intention permanently to cease business or in fact does so or (2) if
principal in respect of any Notes is not paid when due, by the holder (including the holder of a
Note represented by a permanent Global Note) giving notice to the Fiscal Agent of its election for
such exchange.

3. Permanent Global Certificates

If the Pricing Supplement states that the Notes are to be represented by a permanent Global Certificate
on issue, transfers of the holding of Notes represented by any Global Certificate pursuant to Condition
2(8) may only be made in part:

3.1 if the Notes represented by the Global Certificate are held on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg or an Alternative Cleating System and any such clearing system is closed for business
for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or
announces an intention permanently to cease business or does in fact do so; or

3.2 if principal in respect of any Notes is not paid when due; or
3.3  with the consent of the Issuer,

provided that, in the case of the first transfer of part of a holding pursuant to 3.1 or 3.2 above, the
Registered Holder has given the Registrar not less than 30 days’ notice at its specified office of the
Registered Holder’s intention to effect such transfer.

4. Partial Exchange of Permanent Global Notes

For so long as a permanent Global Note is held on behalf of a clearing system and the rules of that
clearing system permit, such permanent Global Note wili be exchangeable in part on one or more
occastons (1) for Registered Notes if the permanent Global Note is an Exchangeable Bearer Note and
the part submitted for exchange is to be exchanged for Registered Notes, or (2) for Definttive Notes (i)
if principal in respect of any Notes is not paid when due or (i) if so provided in, and in accordance with,
the Conditions (which will be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement) relating to Partly Paid Notes.

5. Delivery of Notes

On or after any due date for exchange, the holder of a Global Note may surrender such Global Note or,
in the case of a partial exchange, present it for endorsement to or to the order of the Fiscal Agent. In
exchange for any Global Note, or the part thereof to be exchanged, the Issuer will (i) in the case of a
temporary Global Note exchangeable for a permanent Global Note, deliver, or procure the delivery of,
a permanent Global Note in an aggregate principal amount equal to that of the whole or that part of a
temporary Global Note that is being exchanged or, in the case of a subsequent exchange, endorse, or
procure the endorsement of, a permanent Global Note to reflect such exchange or (i) in the case of a
Global Note exchangeable for Definitive Notes or Registered Notes, deliver, or procure the delivery of,
an equal aggregate principal amount of duly executed and authenticated Definitive Notes and/or
Certificates, as the case may be. In this Offering Circular, “Definitive Notes” means, in relation to any
Global Note, the definitive Bearer Notes for which such Global Note may be exchanged (if appropriate,
having attached to them all Coupons and Receipts in respect of intetest or Instalment Amounts that have
not already been paid on the Global Note and a Talon). Definitive Notes will be security printed and
Certificates will be printed in accordance with any applicable legal and stock exchange requirements in
or substantially in the form set out in the Schedules to the Agency Agreement. On exchange in full of
each permanent Global Note, the Issuer will, if the holder so requests, procure that it is cancelled and
returned to the holder together with the relevant Definitive Notes.

6. Exchange Date

“Exchange Date” means, in relation to a temporary Global Note, the day falling after the expiry of
40 days after its issue date and, in relation to a permanent Global Note, a day falling not less than
60 days, or in the case of an exchange for Registered Notes five days, or in the case of failure to pay
principal in respect of any Notes when due 30 days, after that on which the notice requiring exchange
is given and on which banks are open for business in the city in which the specified office of the Fiscal
Agent is located and in the city in which the relevant clearing system is located.
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Amendment to Conditions

The temporary Global Notes, permanent Global Notes and Global Certificates contain provisions that
apply to the Notes that they represent, some of which modify the effect of the terms and conditions of
the Notes set out in this Offening Circular by reason of their particular nature or the clearing system or
depository that they are respectively cleared in or deposited with, The following is a summary of certain
of those provisions:

1. Payments

No payment falling due after the Exchange Date will be made on any Global Note unless exchange for
an interest in a permanent Global Note or for Definitive Notes or Registered Notes is improperly
withheld or refused. Payments on any temporary Global Note issued in compliance with the D Rules
before the Exchange Date will only be made against presentation of certification as to non-U.S.
beneficial ownership in the form set out in the Agency Agreement. All payments in respect of Notes
represented by a Global Note will be made against presentation for endorsement and, if no further
payment falls to be made in respect of the Notes, surrender of that Global Note to or to the order of
the Fiscal Agent or such other Paying Agent as shall have been notified to the Noteholders for such
purpose. A record of each payment so made will be endorsed on each Global Note, which endorsement
will be prima facie evidence that such payment has been made in respect of the Notes.

2,  Prescription
Claims against the Issuer in respect of Notes that are represented by a permanent Global Note will

become void unless it is presented for payment within a period of 10 years (in the case of principal)
and five years (in the case of interest) from the approprate Relevant Date (as defined in Condition 8).

3. Meetings .

The holder of a permanent Global Note or of the Notes represented by a Global Certificate shall (unless
such permanent Global Note or Global Certificate represents only one Note) be treated as being two
persons for the purposes of any quorum requirements of a meeting of Noteholders and, at any such
meeting, the holder of a permanent Global Note shall be treated as having one vote in respect of each
minimum Denomination of Notes for which such Global Note may be exchanged. (All holders of
Registered Notes are entitled to one vote in respect of each Note comprising such Noteholder's
holding, whether or not represented by a Global Certificate.)

4. Cancellation

Cancellation of any Note represented by a permanent Global Note that is required by the Conditions to
be cancelled (other than upon its redemption) will be effected by reduction in the principal amount of
the relevant permanent Global Note.

5. Puorchase

Notes represented by a permanent Global Note may only be purchased by the Issuer, the Guarantor (if
applicable) or any Subsidiary if they are purchased together with the rights to receive all future payments
of interest and Instalment Amounts (if any) thereon.

6. Issuer’s Option

Any option of the Issuer provided for in the Conditions of any Notes while such Notes are represented
by a permanent Global Note shall be exercised by the Issuer giving notice to the Noteholders within the
time limits set out in, and containing the information required by, the Conditions, except that the notice
shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of Notes drawn in the case of a partial exercise of an
option and, accordingly, no drawing of Notes shall be required. In the event that any option of the Issuer
is exercised in respect of some but not all of the Notes of any Series, the rights of accountholders with a
clearing system or Approved Intermediary in respect of the Notes will be governed by the standard
procedures of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other clearing system (as the case may be).

7.  Noteholders’ Options

Any option of the Noteholders provided for in the Conditions of any Notes while such Notes are
represented by a permanent Global Note may be exercised by the holder of the permanent Global Note
giving notice to the Fiscal Agent within the time limits relating to the deposit of Notes with a Paying
Agent set out in the Conditions substantially in the form of the notice available from any Paying
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Agent, except that the notice shall not be required to contain the serial numbers of the Notes in respect
of which the option has been exercised, and stating the principal amount of Notes in respect of which
the option is exercised and at the same time presenfing the permanent Global Note to the Fiscal Agent,
or to a Paying Agent acting on behalf of the Fiscal Agent, for notation.

8. Events of Default

Each Global Note provides that the holder may cause such Global Note, or a portion of it, to become
due and repayable in the circumstances described in Condition 10 by stating in the notice to the Fiscal
Agent the principal amount of such Global Note that is becoming due and repayable. ) principal in
respect of any Note is not paid when due, the holder of a Global Note or Registered Notes represented
by a Global Certificate may elect for direct enforcement rights against the Issuer and the Guarantor (if
applicable) under the terms of the relevant Deeds of Covenant executed as deeds by the Relevant Issuer
and, in the case of Notes issued by ICI Finance PLC and ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V,, the
Guarantor on 15 May 2001 to come into effect in relation to the whole or a part of such Global Note
or one or more Registered Notes in favour of the persons entitled to such part of such Global Note or
such Registered Notes, as the case may be, as accountholders with a clearing system without prejudice of
such persons’ individual rights to elect for direct enforcement rights under the terms of the relevant
Deeds of Covenant. Following any such acquisition of direct rights, the Global Note or, as the case
may be, the Global Certificate and the comresponding entry in the register kept by the Registrar will
become void as to the specified portion or Registered Notes, as the case may be. However, no such
election may be made in respect of Notes represented by a Global Certificate unless the transfer of the
whole or a part of the holding of Notes represented by that Global Certificate shall have been improperly
withheld or refused.

9. Notices

So long as any Notes are represented by a Global Note and such Global Note is held on behalf of a
clearing system, notices to the holders of Notes of that Series may be given by delivery of the relevant
notice to that clearing system for communication by it to entitled accountholders in substitution for
publication as required by the Conditions or by delivery of the relevant notice to the holder of the
Global Note.

Partly Paid Notes

The provisions relating to Partly Paid Notes are not set out in this Offering Circular, but will be
contained in the relevant Pricing Supplement and thereby in the Global Notes. While any instalments
of the subscription moneys due from the holder of Partly Paid Notes are overdue, no interest in a
Global Note representing such Notes may be exchanged for an interest in a permanent Global Note or
for Definitive Notes (as the case may be). If any Noteholder fails to pay any instalment due on any Partly
Paid Notes within the time specified, the Issuer may forfeit such Notes and shall have no further
obligation to their holder in respect of them.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds of the Notes will be used for the general corporate purposes of the Group.

In the case of Notes issued by ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. the net proceeds will be applied in
compliance with the Decree of the Dutch Minister of Finance dated 4 February 1993 (BGW 93/6)
issued pursuant to article 1, paragraph 3 of the 1992 Act on the supervision of the credit system as
amended.
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IMPERIAL CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES PLC
Business Description

Introduction

Since the incorporation of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC (“ICI”) in 1926, ICI and its subsidiary
undertakings (the “ICI Group™) has been one of the major industrial chemical organisations in the
world with an impressive record in innovation. In 1997 the ICI Group began a significant reshaping
programme, consistent with its plans to focus its resources in specialty products and paints. This
reshaping activity continued through 1998, 1999 and 2000. The core businesses of the ICI Group now
comprise National Starch, Quest, Performance Specialties and Paints. The ICI Group also has a number
of Regional and Industrial businesses.

The ICI Group has leading international positions in industrial adhesives, specialty starch, fragrances,
flavours, food ingredients, specialty process intermediates and paints. It also has strong positions in
synthetic resins and polymers, surfactanis and catalysts.

Current Trading and Prospects

Trading conditions remained challenging in the USA throughout the first quarter. However, excelient
petformance in Asia (+8 per cent.), and solid progress in Europe (+3 per cent) and Latin America
(+1 per cent.), more than offset a 2 per cent. decline in North American sales demonstrating the
strength coming from ICI’s geographic spread.

A robust sales and profit performance, despite difficult trading conditions in the U.S., demonstrates the
quality and resilience of the ICI business. The ICI Group is encouraged by the competitive performance
of the business in the first quarter. Actions are underway to ensure that the ICI Group continues to
perform well relative to the industry for the full year, despite the uncertainty about the U.S. economic
outlook.

Litigation

(i) The Glidden Company (“Glidden®), a wholly-owned subsidiary of ICI, is a defendant, along with
former lead paint and pigment producers as well as other lead product manufacturers and their
trade associations, in a number of suits in the United States of America, four of which purport to
be class actions. These suits seek damages for alleged personal injury caused by lead-related products
or for the costs of removing lead-based paint. An alleged predecessor of Glidden manufactured lead
pigments until the 1950s and lead-based consumer paints until the 1960s. The suits mvolve
substantial claims for damages, and rulings adverse to Glidden could lead to additional claims.
The cases pending include a suit filed in 1989 by the New York Housing Authority in New York
State court secking the removal of all lead-based paints from all buildings in two of the New York
Housing Authority projects. A purported class action suit filed in August 1992 on behalf of all
children alleged to be affected by lead-based paints is pending in the State Court of Ohio, and a
purported class action on behalf of all children in the State of New York was filed in New York
state court in 1998. In 1999, the State of Rhode Island filed a suit seeking lead paint abatement
and other monetary damages including costs of related governmental programmes, and similar
suits were filed by the City of St Louis, Missouni and the County of Santa Clara, California in
early 2000. In addition, two suits were filed in Maryland in 1999. One of these is a purported
class action secking abatement of lead paint in Maryland and the other is a personal injury suit on
behalf of six allegedly injured minors. Another personal injury lawsuit on behalf of a minor was
filed in Milwaukee, Wisconsin in late 1999. In mid 2000, two Texas school districts filed separate
suits seeking the costs of removing lead-based paint and an individual action was filed in Chicago,
IHinois seeking medical monitoring and damages for lead related illnesses. In the later part of 2000,
two personal injury actions were fited in San Francisco, Califorma and Jefferson, Mississippi. A
further suit similar to the Texas school district cases was filed in Harrds County Texas in 2001.
Finally, four other individual personal injury actions have been filed in Baltimore, Maryland
against Glidden and other members of the lead industry, however, these actions have not been
served on any of the defendants and no activity is expected for the foreseeable future. Several U.S.
State legislatures have considered or are considering proposed legislation that could adversely affect
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Glidden’s position in pending or possible future cases, including proposals that could add
additional grounds for legal liability or that would permit suits otherwise time-barred. Glidden
believes that it has strong defences and has denied all liability and will continue to vigorously
defend all actions.

(1) A subsidiary is involved in arbitration proceedings in Singapore regarding PTA technology exchange
and licence arrangements with PT Polyprima Karyareksa (Polyprima). Fees due under these
arrangements are being claimed against Polyprima who, in response, has claimed damages for
alleged fraud, deceit, misrepresentation and concealment, allegations which the subsidiary rejects
and intends to resist vigorously.

{i1)) Proceedings in the High Court in London have been brought against a subsidiary by 441 former
employees of Teesside Central Engineering Resource (TCER). They allege breach of contract,
breach of warranty and negligent misrepresentation ansing out of the transfer of their employment
from the subsidiary as part of the sale of TCER to Redpath Engineering Services in 1994. The
subsidiary rejects these claims and intends to vigorously defend the proceedings.

Save as set out above, no member of the ICI Group is or has been engaged in, nor (so far as ICI is aware)
has pending or threatened, any Jegal or arbitration proceedings which may have or have had in the recent
past (including at least the 12 months preceding the date of this document) a significant effect on the
financial position of the ICI Group.

Other Contingent Liabilities

In addition to specific legal proceedings detailed above, and described as at the date of this document,
other contingent liabilities of the ICI Group at 31 December 2000 compnsed the points set out below.

Various other legal proceedings, principally in the United Kingdom and United States of America, arising
out of the normal course of business. The Directors do not believe that the outcome of these other
proceedings will have a material effect on the ICI Group’s financial position.

Certain indemnities given by ICI in the course of disposing of companies. ICI believes that these and
other guarantees and contingencies arising in the ordinary course of business, for which no security has
been given, are unlikely to impair materially the ICI Group’s financial position.

The ICI Group’s 50 per cent. interest in Teesside Gas Transportation Ltd (TGT) was sold, during 1996, to
its other shareholder, Enron Europe Lid (Enron). TGT contracted with the owners of a distribution
network (the CATS parties) for pipeline capacity for North Sea gas and the commitment is guaranteed
severally by ICI and Enron (the present value of the commitment guaranteed by ICI is estimated at
£148 million). On the sale of the ICI Group’s interest in TGT to Enron ICI received the benefit of a
counter guarantee from Enron’s parent, Enron Corp.

The ICI Group’s interest in Teesside Power Ltd (TPL) was sold on 31 December 1998 to Enron Teesside
Operations Led (ETOL). TPL had previously contracted with certain gas seflers for the purchase of gas.
Enron Corp. and ICI had guaranteed on a several basis the liability of TPL to the gas sellers in the
proportions 70 per cent. and 30 per cent. respectively.

On the sale of the ICI Group’s interest in TPL to ETOL, ICI received the benefit of a guarantee from
Enron Corp. in respect of ICPs 30 per cent. guarantee commitment to the gas sellers. The present value
of this commitment at 31 December 2000 was estimated at £270 million.

The ICI Group has a number of long term contracts for up to three years, which were entered into in the
normal course of business. Some of these contracts relate to activities which the ICI Group has exited as
part of its disposal programme, which have not been novated to the purchaser. In relation to such
contracts the ICI Group has back to back contracts to supply the raw materials to the purchaser of the
business.

Under the terms of the Chior-Chemicals sale and purchase agreement, the ICI Group has agreed to defer
£50 million of the consideration in the form of unsecured loan notes (Notesj to be issued by the
acquiring company, Ineos Chlor. Any outstanding balance owing on the Notes in 2010 will convert pro
rata into warrants representing up to an additional 34 per cent. of Ineos Chlor’s share capital if no
repayment under the Notes had been made. The ICI Group currently assesses the value of the Notes at
£25 million.
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The ICI Group has also agreed to provide or guarantee up to £100 million of future financing to the
Chlor-Chemicals business. These facilities will be available at market related rates, for five years and
may, if necessary, be extended for a further two years. The facilities, together with Ineos Chlor’s
obligation to assume various Chlor-Chermicals contracts, are secured in favour of the ICl Group. While
any of these liabilities remain outstanding, the ICI Group has cerfain rights under a shareholders’
agreement including, in the event of an Ineos Chlor default, the right, for no consideration, to take
control of Ineos Chlor if the ICI Group judges that it is in its best interests to do so. The ICI Group’s
15 per cent. shareholding in Chlor-Chemicals, which it intends to hold for at least five years, will be
subject to put and call options in certain circumstances.

The only significant take-or-pay contract entered into by subsidiary undertakings of ICI was the purchase
of electric power, which commenced in the second quarter of 1998, for 15 years. The present value of
this commitment at 31 December 2000 is estimated at £167 million.

Contingent liabilities existed at 31 December 2000 in connection with guarantees and uncalled capital
relating to subsidiary and other undertakings and guarantees relating to pension funds, including the
solvency of pension funds. There was no contingent liability in respect of guarantees of borrowings and
uncalled capital for the ICI Group at 31 December 2000 (1999 £nil); the maximum contingent liability
for ICI, mainly on guarantees of borrowing by subsidiaries, was £2,488 million (1999 £2,382 million).

The ICI Group is also subject to contingencies pursuant to environmental laws and regulations that in
the future may require it to take action to correct the effects on the environment of prior disposal or
release of chemical substances by the ICI Group or other parties. The ultimate requirement for such
actions, and their cost, is inherently difficult to estimate, however provisions have been established as at
31 December 2000 in accordance with the ICI Group’s accounting policy which states that the ICI
Group is exposed to environmental liabilities relating to its past operations, principally in respect of soil
and groundwater remediation costs. Provisions for these costs are made when expenditure on remedial
work is probable and the cost can be estimated within a reasonable range of possible outcomes. It is
believed that, taking account of these provisions, the cost of addressing currently identified
environmental obligations is unlikely to impair matenally the ICI Group’s financial position and results
of operations.
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Directors

The directors of ICI and their functions within the ICI Group and their principal activities outside the

ICI Group are as follows:

Executive Directors Other Directorships

Charles Miller Smith Scottish Power Plc (Chairman)
(Chairman) HSBC Holdings plc

Brendan R O’Neill EMAP plc

{Chief Executtve)

Paul J Drechsler

(Chairman and Chief Executive - Quest
International)

John D G McAdam

(Executive Vice President - Coatings,
Chairman and Chief Executive ICI
Paints)

William H Powell
{Chairman and Chief Executive Officer -
National Starch and Chemical Company)

Severn Trent Plc

Alan G Spall

{Chief Financial Officer)

Non Executive Directors Other Directorships

Lord Butler HSBC Holdings plc

Joseph T Gorman TRW Inc. (Chairman and Chief Executive Offices)
Alcoa, Inc.
The Proctor & Gamble Company
National City Corporation

Sir Roger Hum Marcont plc, (Chairman)

Richard N. Haythomthwaite

Lord Trotman

Prudential plc (Chairman)
GlaxoSmithKline plc (Joint Deputy Chairman)

Blue Circle Industries PLC (Group Chief Executive)
Cookson Group plc

IBM
New York Stock Exchange

The business address of the directors is Imperial Chemical House, Millbank, London SW1P 3JF.

Subsidiaries

ICI is the holding company for a group of companies and has approximately 415 subsidiaries including

the following principal subsidiaries:

IC] Chemicals & Polymers Ltd; ICI Finance PLC; Quest International Flavours, Food Ingredients and
Fragrances UK Ltd; Deutsche ICI GmbH; Quest Intemational Nederland BV; Unichema Chemie BV;
ICI American Holdings Inc; The Glidden Company; Indopco Inc; ICI Canada Inc; Tintas Coral Ltd;
ICI India Ltd; ICI Pakistan Ltd; Nippon NSC Ltd; and National Starch and Chemical (Thailand) Ltd.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF IMPERIAL CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES PLC

The following table sets out the consolidated capitalisaion and indebtedness of ICI Group at
31 December 2000 and is extracted from the audited financial statements as at that date:

£m
Shareholders” Funds
Share Capital - Ordinary Shares of £1 each
(Authornised 850 miliion shares; allotted and fully paid 728 million shares) . . . . . . . 728
Reserves . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e (944)
(216)
Minority interests . . . . . . . . . ... e e e e e e 59
Indebtedness for borrowed money
Short-term debt (due within one year)
Bank borrowings . . . . . . . . ... e e 66
Other shortterm borrowings . . . . . . . . . . .. .. ... Lo oL 699
Current instalments of loans . . . . . . . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ..., 466
Finance lease obligattons . . . . . . . . ... . ... ... .. 2
Total short-term debt . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 1,233
Long-term debt (due after more than one year)
Bankloanms . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e 336
Otherloans. . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e 1,895
Finance [ease obligations . . . . . . . . . . . . ... ... .. ... 5
Total longterm debt . . . . . . .. .. Lo e 2,236
Total debt® . © . L e 3,469
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness™< . . . . . .. .. .. ... ... .. .. 3312
Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2000 toral debt, none of which was guaranteed, comprised secured loans of £104 million, secured short term
botrowings of £14 million, unsecured loans of £2,593 million, unsecuted short term borrowings of £751 million and finance lease
obligations £7 million.

(b) Contingent liabilities and guarantees relevant to the capitalisation table at 31 December 2000 are set out on pages 33 and 34 under
the headings “Litigation” and “Other Contingent Liabilities”. The ICI Group's contingent liabilities include items for which the
amount of the obligation cannot be reliably quantified.

(€} There has been no material change in the authorised and issued share capital, consolidated capitalisation, indebtedness, contingent
liabilities or guarantees of the ICI Group since 31 December 2000.
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ICI FINANCE PLC

Incorporation and Business

ICI Finance PLC (“ICI Finance™) was incorporated with limited liability under the laws of England and
Wales on 19 October 1895 with Registered No. 45690.

ICI Finance is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of ICL. ICI Finance is a 100 per cent.-owned direct
subsidiary of Mortar Investments UK Limited. ICI Finance has one subsidiary, details of which are
given in the Notes Relating to the Financial Statements, below.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of ICI Finance throughout the year ended 31 December 2000 were the
management of funds and borrowing facilities, and the management of foreign currency and interest
rate exposures.

Directors

The following is a list of the directors of ICI Finance:

Name Principal Occupation

Alan G Spall (Chairman) Chief Financial Officer, ICI
David ] Gee Vice President, Finance, ICI
Philip J Gillett Group Taxation Controller, ICI
Dawid C Blackwood Group Treasurer, ICI

Allan I Chandlex Group Financial Controller, ICI

Norne of the directors listed above performs activities outside the ICI Group which are significant with
respect to the ICI Group.

The business address of the directors is Imperial Chemical House, Millbank, London SW1P 3JF.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF ICI FINANCE PLC

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of ICI Finance PLC at 31 December
2000 and is extracted from the audited financial statements as at that date.

£m
Shareholders” Funds
Share capital - Ordinary sharesof £l each . . . . . . .. ... ... .. .. ..... 310
{Authonsed 500 million shares; allotted and fully paid 310 million shares)
Reserves. . . . . o o L e e e e e e e 539
849
Indebtedness for borrowed money
Short-term debt (due within one year)
External. . . . . o . e e e e e 443
IntraGroup. . . . . . . . o e e e e e e e e e e 7,335
Total debt®F. . L L L, 7,778
Total Capitalisation and Indebtedness™¥ . . . ... ... ... .. 8,627

Notes:

(2) As at 31 December 2000, none of the Company’s total debt was secured or guaranteed and there were no borrowings under the Euro
Medium Term Note Programme.

(b} The company did not have any contingent liabilities and had not entered into any guarantee commitments as at 31 December 2000,
() At 31 March 2001 (unaudited balances) indebtedness for borrowed money totalled £6,536 million.

(d) Save as described in note (c} ahove, there has been no material change in the authorised and issued share capital, capitalisation,
indebtedness, contingent liabilities or guarantees of ICI Finance PLC since 31 December 2000.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON ICI FINANCE PLC

The financial information set out on pages 41 to 46 bas been extracted, without material adjustments, from the
audited accounts of ICI Finance PLC in respect of the relevant periods. The report below has been extracted from
the accounts of ICI Finance PLC for the year ended 31 December 2000. The page references below are to those of
such accounts.

“AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ICI FINANCE PLC
We have audited the financial statements on pages 7 to 13.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and, as described on page 5%, the financial
statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our
responsibilities, as independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the
Auditing Practices Board and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
company is not disclosed.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by
the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessaty in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulasity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial statements.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company as at 31 December 2000 and of its profit for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London ECA4Y 8BB

22 March 2001~

Note:

* Set out below is the statement in respect of the responsibility of the Directors which appears in the relevant finandial statements:
“Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are
required to:

—  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

—  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

—  state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements;

—  prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financal

position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985. They

have a general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them for safeguarding the assets of the Company and to

prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities,”
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ICI FINANCE PLC

Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31 December 2000

Notes 2000 1999

£m Lm

Net operating income/(expenses). . . . . . . . - . ... ... 3 43.9 107.3
Operating profit/(loss) . . . .. ... ... ... ... .... 43.9 107.3
Interest receivable and similar income . . . .. ... ... L. 4 564.3 579.2
Interest payable and similar charges . . . . . ... ... ... 5 (413.6) (400.1)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation . . . . ... ... 2 194.6 286.4
Tax on profit on ordinary activittes . . . . . .. .. ... .. 6 (58.4) (87.2)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation . . . . . ... ... 136.2 199.2
Dividendsproposed . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ..... 7 — -
Retained profit/{loss) fortheyear . . . . . .. ... .. ... 136.2 199.2
Profit and loss account brought forward . . . . . . .. .. .. 402.4 203.2
Profit and loss account carried forward. . . . . . .. ... .. 538.6 402.4

A reconciliation of movements of shareholders’ funds is set out in note 14 to these financial statements.
The Company has no recognised gains or losses other than the profit for the year.

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ICI Finance PLC
Balance sheet at 31 December 2000

Notes 2000 1999
£m £m
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assets. . . . . . . .. . L Lo 8 1.6 1.6
Investments . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e 9 201.0 171.3
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors . . . . . . . e e e 10 8,396.3 7.602.4
Investments . . . . . . . v v v it e e e e e e e e e e 11 95.4 208.8
Cashatbankandinhand. . . ... ... .......... 31.5 1.4
8,523.2 7,812.6
CREDITORS:
amounts falling due withinoneyear. . . . . ... ... ... 12 (7,877.2) (7,273.1)
NET CURRENT ASSETS. . . . . . . . .. . . .. ... 646.0 539.5
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES . . . . . .. 348.6 712.4
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Calledup share capital. . . . . . .. .. ... ... ... .. 13 310.0 310.0
Profitand lossaccount. . . . . . . ... ... ... ..... 538.6 402.4
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS - EQUITY. . . . ... .. ... 14 848.6 712.4

The notes on pages 9 to 13 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2001 and were signed on
its behalf by:

D C Blackwood
Director
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ICI Finance PILC

Notes Relating to the Financial Statements

1.  Accounting policies

{a)  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
applicable accounting standards and the Companies Act 1985, as amended by the Companies Act 1989.

(8)  Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies (including forward foreign currency contracts) are converted
into sterling at the spot rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are
taken to the profit and loss account.

(c) Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into account taxation deferred
because of timing differences between the treatment of provisions for taxation and accounting purposes.
However, no provision is made for taxation deferred by reliefs unless there is reasonable evidence that
such deferred taxation will be payable in the future.

(d)  Financial Reporting Standard No.l (Revised 1996)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking include a
consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group. The Company is consequently exempt from
preparing a cash flow statement in these financial statements.

(¢)  Dertvative instruments

Derivative instruments, such as cross currency swaps, interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, interest
rate caps and options, are marked to market at the balance sheet date and the surplus or deficit ansing
taken to the profit and loss account. Both interest rate caps premia and currency options premia are taken
directly to the profit and loss account at date of purchase.

(f}  Depreciation

The policy 15 to wnte-off the historical cost of each tangible fixed asset on a straight-line basis at a
depreciation rate of 20 per cent. per annum.

2, Segmental information
The Company’s activities are carried out wholly in the United Kingdom.

Profit before taxation is not analysed by class of business since the Company’s activities are so closely
inter-related that a separate analysis would not be meaningful.

3. Net operating income/(expenses)

2000 1999

£m £m

Gains/(losses) due to exchange and interest rate movements . . . . . . . . . 50.4 108.7
Administration and otherexpenses. . . . . . . . . ..t e . . (1.4) (1.0)
Depreciation. . . . . v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (0.6) (0.9)
OtherItems . . . . . . v v v it e e e e e e e e e e e e (4.5) -

43.9 107.3

The remuneration and expenses of the Auditor in respect of the statutory report to the members of the
Company for the year 2000 amounted to £45,000 (1999: £71,000).

4. Interest receivable and similar income

2000 1999
£m Lm
Interest from ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiary undertakings 499.9 521.8

Interest from short-term deposits and other interest




ICI Finance PLC
5. Interest payable and similar charges

2600 1999

Lm Lo

Interest to ultimate holding company and fellow subsidiary undertakings . . (375.9) (294.4)
Bank loansand overdrafts . . . . . . . ... .. ... ... .. .. ... (137 -
Interest ort other borrowings. . . . . . . . . . . ... ... (24.0) (105.7)

(413.6) {400.1)

The above payments are in respect of barrowings wholly repayable within one year,

6. Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2000 1999
£m £m
Corporation tax —group relief. . . . . . . . ... ... .. ... . .... (58.4) (87.2)

UK corporation tax has been provided on the profits of the year at the rate of 30.00 per cent. (1999:
30.25 per cent.).

7. Dividends
2000 1999
£m £m
Dividend proposed . . . . .. .. ... .. ... ... . — -
8.  Fixed assets
Plant and
Equipment
£m
Cost
At beginningof the year. . . . . . . . . . . ... 2.0
Capital expenditure . . . . . . . .. L e e 0.6
Atendofyear. . . . . . . . L e e 2.6
Depreciation
Atbeginningof year. . . . . . . . . L L L e e e e 0.4
Chargeforyear . . . . . . . . . . e 0.6
Atendofyear. . . . . . . L e e e e e e 1.0
Netbookvalueatend 2000. . . . . . . . . . . .. . . .. i 1.6
Net book valueat end 1999 . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . 1.6
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9,  Fixed asset investments

Huntsman
Shares B Note Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At beginningof year. . . .. . . ... ... . 0.5 170.8 171.3
Additions . . . . . .. ... L ~ 14.9 14.9
Disposals . . . . . . ... . . - — -
Exchange adjustments . . . . . . . . .. ... .. ...... - 14.8 14.8
Atendofyear. . . . . .. ... ... .. .. .. 0.5 200.5 201.0
All shares are held in an unlisted subsidiary undertaking.
Details of the subsidiary undertaking are given below:
Country of
Registration and Class of
Principal Shares % held Principal
Operations held (direct)  Activities
I1CI Finance (Leasing) Limited . . . . . . . . .. England  Ordinary 100.00 Leasing

In the opinion of the Directors, the value of the investment in the subsidiary undertaking is not less than
the amount at which it is stated in the balance sheet.

The Company is exempt {(under section 228 of the Companies Act 1985) from the requirement to
prepare Group accounts as 1t is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mortar Investments UK Ltd which in tum
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC and is therefore included in the
consolidated accounts of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, a company registered in England.

10. Debtors
2000 1999
Lm £m
Amounts due from holding company and fellow subsidiary undertakings . . 8,344.8 7,491.0
Otherdebtors . . . . . . . . . . i i i it e e e e e e e 34.3 1111
Accruals and deferred income . . . . . . L L L L. e 17.2 -

8,396.3 7,602.1

There are no debtors falling due after more than one year (1999: £Nil).

11. Cwrrent asset investments

Securities listed on The London Stock Exchange

Total isted investments . . . . . . . . . .. e e e e e
Unbsted investments. . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e




ICI Finance PLC

12. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2000 1999
£m Im
Bank loans and overdrafts (unsecured) . . . . . ... ... ... ... (442.6) (18.4)
Otherloans . . . . . . . . .. . e e e - (43.2)
Amounts owed to Group companies
Holding company and fellow subsidiary undertakings . . . . . . ... .. (7,335.5) (7,065.9)
Subsidiary undertaking . . . . .. ... L Lo -~ 0.8)
Corporation tax - group relief payable . . . . . .. ... ... . ... ... {68.8) (101.5)
Accruals and deferred income . . . . . .. oL Lo oL L. (9.3) (1.1)
Othercreditors . . . . . . . . . . e (21.0) 42.2)

(7877.2)  (7,273.1)

13. Called up share capital Authonised Allotted and fully paid
2000 1999 2000 1999
Im £m £m £m
Equity ordinary shares of £1 each . . . . . . .. 500.0 500.0 310.0 3100
14. Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds 2000 1999
Im Im

Opening shareholders’ funds. . . . . . . ... .. ... ... .. ..... 712.4 513.2
Retained profit/(loss) fortheyear . . . . . . . .. ... ... .. ..... 136.2 199.2
Closing shareholders’ funds . . . .. ... ... ... ... ........ 848.6 712.4

15. Commitments

Commitments existed at 31 December 2000 in connection with forward carrency contracts, currency
options and cross cusrency and interest rate swaps, arising in the ordinary course of business.

16. Directors’ emoluments and staff costs

The Company employed no staff during year (1999: Nil). None of the Directors received any
emoluments in respect of their services to the Company (1999: £Nil).

17. Parent company
Mortar Investments UK Ltd, which is registered in England, is the Company’s parent company.

18. Ultimate parent company
The Company’s ultimate parent company is Imperiai Chemical Industries PLC, which is incorporated in
Great Britain and registered in England.

Copies of the Group accounts are available from Company Secretary’s Department Imperial Chemical
House, Millbank, London SW1P 3]JF.

19. Related party disclosures

Related party transactions with other members of the ICI Group controlled by Impenal Chemical
Indu;trides PLC are not disclosed in accordance with the exemption allowed under Financial Reporting
Standard No. 8.
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ICI INVESTMENTS (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Incorporation and Business

ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. (“ICI B.V.”) was incorporated with limited lability under the laws of
the Netherlands on 17 June 1997. It is registered with the Chamber of Commerce and Industry in
Rotterdam under number 24275870.

The business of ICI B.V. is that of a holding company. ICI B.V. has 15 wholly-owned direct subsidiaries,
details of which are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements, below.

ICI B.V. is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of ICL ICI B.V. is a 100%-owned direct subsidiary of
ICI Omicron B.V.

Managing Directors

The following 1s a list of the managing directors of ICI B.V.:

Name Principal Occupation

Ronald Koning Corporate Tax Manager, ICI

Philip J Gillett Group Taxation Controller, IC1

Rudolf D van Houten Corporate Controller, Quest International

None of the managing directors listed above perform activities outside the ICI Group which are
significant with respect to the ICI Group.

The business address of the managing directors is Postbus 2, 1400 CA Bussum, The Netherlands.
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CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF ICI INVESTMENTS (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

The following table sets out the capitalisation and indebtedness of ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. a¢
31 December 2000 and is extracted from the audited financial statements as at that date.

NLG
(Thousand)
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital - shares of NLG 100 each
(Authorised 2,000 shares; issued and fully paid 400 shares) . . . . . . ... ... ... 40
Share Preminm ACCOUNE . . . . . . v 0 o i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 377,962
Reserves® . . L . L e (261,902)
116,100
Indebtedness for borrowed money
Short-term debt (due within one year)
Intra Group. . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e 161,818
Long-term debt (due after more than one year)

Extermal. . . . . . . . e e e e e e 2,046,408
Total debt®™ . . . . . ... 2,208,226
Total Capitalisation and indebtedness®*Xd L 2,324,326
Notes:

{22 As at 31 December 2000 total debt, none of which was secured, comprised NLG 2,046,408,000 relating to the Buro Medium Term
Note Programme, which is unconditionally and imevocably guaranteed by ICI, and NLG 161,818,000 of unguaranteed debt.

(b) The company did not have any contingent liabilities and had not entered into any guarantee commitments as at 31 December 2000,

(¢} During the quarter to 31 March 2601 {unaudited balances} the deficit on reserves increased by NLG 24,271,000 to NLG 286,173,000,
being interest charges and a realised investment loss.

(d) Save as described in note {c) above there has been no material change in the authorised and issued share capital, capitalisation,
indebtedness, contingent liabilities or guarantees of ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. since 31 December 2000.
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AUDITOR’S REPORT ON ICI INVESTMENTS (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

The financial information set out on pages 50 to 55 has been extracted, without material adjustments, from the
andited accounts of ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. in respect of the relevant periods. The report below has
been extracted from the accounts of ICI nvestments (Netherlands) B.V. for the period ended 31 Decemnber 2000.

AUDITOR’S REPORT
“Introduction

We have audited the financial statements for 2000 of ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V., Rotterdam.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Scope

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Netherlands.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as of 31 December 2000 and of the result for the financial year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Netherlands and comply with the financial
reporting requirements incleded in Part 9, Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code.

Rotterdam, 21 March 2001

KPMG Accountants N.V.”
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IC] INVESTMENTS (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2000
{after proposed appropnation of result)

31 December 2000 31 December 1999
{in thousands of Dutch guilders)

Financial fixed assets

Investments in group companies. . . . . . oL 2,296,428 2,605,568
Loans to group companies. . . . . . . . . . . . 30,845 30,845
2,327,273 2,636,413
Current assets
Amounts receivable from group companies . . . 39,666 80,917
Dividend receivable . . . . . . ... ... ... - 99,500
Cash at bankandinhand . . . . . . ... ... 93 71
39,759 180,488
2,367,032 2,816,901
Capital and reserves
Paid-up and called capital . . . . . . . ... .. 40 40 |
Share premium account . . . . . . . ... ... 377,962 277,962 |
Accumulated losses . . . . . ... ... ... (261,902) (49,616) |
116,100 228,386 |
Long-term liabilities |
Bonds . . .. ... .. ... ... ... ..., 2,046,408 2,046,408 .
Current liabilities
Amounts payable to group companies . . . . . . 161,818 515,509
Other habilities . . . . .. .. ... ... ... 42,706 26,598
204,524 542,107
2,367,032 2,816,901
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ICI Investments (Netberlands) B.V.
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2000

2000 1999
(in thousands of Dutch
guilders)

General expenses. . . . . . . . . . . .o {261} (98)
Income from investments . . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e 56,695 99,500
Revaluation of investmments . . . . . . . . . . o i it e e e e e . (195,000) -
Net interest payable and similarcharges . . . . . . . . ... ..o (113,544) (86,430)
(Loss)/profit before taxation . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ....... (252,110) 12,972
Taxation. . . . . v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 39,824 30,272
(Loss)/profit after taxation . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ........ (212,286) 43,244
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ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General
The Company was incorporated on 17 June 1997.

The Company’s parent company is ICI Omicron B.V., Rotterdam. Its ultimate parent company is
Imperial Chemical Industdes PLC, London, United Kingdom (hereafter “ICI PLC”).

Significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and on an accrual basis
of accounting.

Consolidated accounts

The Company has elected to invoke Article 408, Title 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code whereby the

Company is exempt from preparing consolidated financial statements since the financial and other data

of the Company and its subsidiaries is consolidated with that of ICI PLC. The Annual Report of ICI
PLC will be deposited together with the Company’s statements with the Trade Register.

Foreign currencies

Profit and loss items in foreign currencies are translated into Dutch guilders at average rates for the
relevant accounting periods. Assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates
ruling at balance sheet date. Foreign currency exchange gains or losses arising from translation are
processed in the profit and loss account.

Financial derfvatrves

The Company uses currency swaps to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risks and interest rate swaps to
adjust interest rate exposure. Principal amounts of currency swaps are revalued at exchange rates ruling at
balance sheet date and included in the Dutch guilder value of long-term liabilities. Interest income and
expenses from interest rate swaps are processed with net interest payable.

Financial fixed assets
In recognition of its status as a Dutch intermediate holding company of ICI PLC, the investments in
group companies are stated at cost, applying historical exchange rates.

Dividends received from pre-acquisition reserves of participating interests are applied to reduce the
historical acquisition costs of the relevant investment.

In the event of a permanent diminution in value of an investment, this impairment is reflected by an
adjustment to the carrying value of the relevant investment (“revaluation of investment”).

Other assets and liabilities
Unless otherwise stated in the financial statements, all other assets and kabilities are shown at face value.

Recognition of tncome from participating interests

Dividends from participating interests in respect of the financial year or previous years ate recorded as
income for the year in so far as such dividends are received or declared before preparation of the
Company’s accounts.

Taxation

The Company and its subsidiaries are part of a fiscal unit, of which ICI Theta B.V. is the parent
company. Due to this unity, the Company is jointly and severally liable for the liabilities of the fiscal
unit. Taxes payable by the fiscal unit are allocated to the separate companies in proportion to their
fiscal results.
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ICY Investments (Netherlands) B.V.
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2000

Financial fixed assets
Investments in group companies
Relates to the 100 per cent interest in the following subsidiaries:

Alabastine Holland B.V., Ammerzoden

Crosfield B.V., Eijeden

Naarden International N.V., Rotterdam

National Starch and Chemical B.V., Zutphen

Quest International Nederland B.V., Naarden
Unichema Chemie B.V., Gouda

Vinamul B.V.,, Geleen

ICI Finance (Nethetlands) N.V., Rotterdam

ICI Paint (China) Holdings B.V., Rotterdam

1CI Autocolor Holland B.V., Rotterdam

Sentinel 5.A., Luxembourg

Quest International B.V., Aardenburg

Unichema International B.V., Rotterdam

National Starch and Chemical Intemational B.V., Rotterdam
National Starch and Chemical (Chile) B.V., Rotterdam
ICI Colombia B.V., Bogota (1 per cent).

The movements during the financial year were as follows:

(in thousands
of Dutch

guilders)
Book value as at 31 December 1999. . . . . . . . . ... e e e 2,605,568
Additions . . . . . . L. e e e e e e e e e e 321,489
Repayment of capital . . . . . . . . . .. . e (470,894)
Preacquisiion dividends . . . . . . . . . .. L e (64,735)
Revaluation of InVESEMENIt. . . .+ . v & v v v o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e {195,000)
Reversal of prior revaluation processed directly inequity. . . . . . . . . ... ... ... 100,000
Book value as at 31 December 2000. . . . . . . . . . .. .. .o 2,296,428
Capital and reserves
Paid-up and called capital

The paid-up and called capital as at 31 December 2000 consists of 400 ordinary shares of NLG 100 each.

Share premium account

2000 1999

(in thousands (in thousands
of Dutch of Dutch
Luilders) guilders)

Balanceasat 1 January . . . . . .. . . ... ... oL 277,962 277,962
Reversal of prior years valuation adjustment of tnvestment in group

COMPANIES. « o v v v v v v v et e e e e e e e e m e e e e 100,000 -
Balance asat 31 December . . . . . . . . .. ... .. L., 377,962 277,962




ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.

Accunulated losses
2000 1999
(in thousands (in thousands
of Dutch of Dutch
guilders) guilders)
Balanceasat 1 Januwary . . . . . . . . ... ... Lo (49,616) (92,860)
(Loss)y/profit fortheyear. . . . . ... .. .. ... ... .. ....... (212,286) 43,244
Balanceasat 31 December . . . . . . .. . ... ... .. (261,902) (49,616)
Long-term liabilities
Bonds
The following analysis reflects the effects of financial derivatives on the Company’s borrowings.
Before financial derivatives After financial derivatives
Onginal Original Amount Repayment Interest Amount
currency interest rate NLG,000 dates rate NLG,000
11.5. dollars 6.75 1,239,850 2002 variable 1,034,853
Bntish pounds 7.625 1,087,035 2007 variable 1,011,555
2,326,885 2,046,408

The weighted average interest rate payable in 2000, including the effects of financial denivatives, was
approximately 4.6 per cent. (1999: 3.5 per cent.).

Repayment of the bonds and notes and interest thereon is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by
ICI PLC under the Furo Medium Term Note Programme. Under this programme ICI PLC, ICI
Finance PLC, ICI Coordination Centre N.V. and the Company (together the Issuers) may issue notes
up to a principal amount of USD 5,000 million.

The notes (and interest thereon) shall at all time rank parr passu amongst themselves and at least equally
with all other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness and monetary obligations of the Company
{and the other Issuers). Furthermore, cross default and negative pledge clauses apply.
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ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2000

Net interest payable and similar charges

Represents the balance of interest payable on the basis of original lending agreements and the income and
expenses from interest rate swaps with respect to bonds and notes. The swap contracts have been entered
into with other 1CI group companies. Furthermore, this item includes interest paid and received on
cutrent accounts with group companies. The net interest income from group companies included in
this item amounts to NLG 57.1 million (1999: 7.9 million).

Managing directors’ remuneration

Managing ditectors did not receive any remuneration.

Employees
There are no employees in the service of the Company.

55




TAXATION

UNITED KINGDOM

The following is a summary of the Issuers’ understanding of curmrent law and practice in the
United Kingdom relating to the withholding tax treatment of interest payments on the Notes. They do
not deal with any other United Kingdom tax implications of acquiring, holding, or disposing of the
Notes. The comments relate only to the position of persons who are absolute beneficial owners of the
Notes. Prospective Noteholders who are unsure as to their tax position or who may be subject to tax in
a jurisdiction other than the United Kingdom should seek their own professional advice.

Noteholders who may be liable to taxation in jurisdictions other than the United Kingdom in respect of
their acquisition, holding or disposal of the Notes are particularly advised to consult their professional
advisers as to whether they are so liable (and if so under the laws of which jurisdictions), since the
following comments relate only to certain United Kingdom taxation aspects of interest payments in
respect of the Notes. In particular, Noteholders should be aware that they may be liable to taxation
under the laws of other jurisdictions in relation to interest payments in respect of the Notes even if
such payments may be made without withholding or deduction for ot on account of taxation under the
laws of the United Kingdom.

Notes issued by Imperial Chemical Industries PL.C and ICI Finance PLC (“U.K. Notes”)

1.  The UK. Notes will constitute “quoted Eurobonds” provided only that they carry a right to
interest and are and continue to be listed on a “recognised stock exchange™ within the meaning of
section 841 of the Act. The London Stock Exchange is currently recognised for this purpose.
Payments of interest on U.K. Notes which constitute quoted Eurobonds as so defined may be
made without withholding or deduction on account of United Kingdom income tax.

2. Interest payable on U.K. Notes with a maturity of less than one year from the date of issue and not
issued with such a maturity date under any arrangement the effect of which is to render such Notes
part of a borrowing with 2 total term in excess of one year, will not be regarded as “yearly interest”
for the purposes of the Act, and interest on such Notes may be paid without withholding or
deduction for or on account of United Kingdom income tax, whether or not such Notes
constitute quoted Eurobonds.

3. In all cases to which neither } nor 2 apply an amount must be withheld from payments of interest
on the U.K. Notes on account of United Kingdom income tax at the lower rate (currently 20 per
cent.), subject to any direction to the contrary by the Inland Revenue under an applicable double
taxation treaty or in circumstances where the exemption for payments between certain companies
contained in clause 83 of the Finance Bill 2001 applies (which was ordered by the House of
Commons to be printed on 13 March 2001).

Other rules relating to United Kingdom Withholding Tax

4.  Noteholders who are individuals should note that where any interest on the Notes is paid to them
(or to any person acting on their behalf) by the Issuer or any person in the United Kingdom acting
on behalf of the Issuer (a “paying agent”), or is received by any person in the United Kingdom
acting on behalf of the relevant Noteholder (other than solely by clearing or arranging the clearing
of a cheque) (a collectmg agent”), then the Issuer, the paying agent or the collecting agent (as the
case may be) may, in certain cases, be required to supply to the United Kingdom Inland Revenue
details of the payment and certain details relating to the Noteholder (including the Noteholder’s
name and address). These provisions will apply whether or not the interest has been paid subject
to withholding or deduction for or on account of United Kingdom income tax and whether or
not the Noteholder is resident in the United Kingdom for United Kingdom taxation purposes.
Where the Noteholder is not so resident, the details provided to the United Kingdom Inland
Revenue may, in certain cases, be passed by the United Kingdom Inland Revenue to the tax
authornties of the jurisdiction in which the Noteholder is resident for taxation purposes.

5. Notes may be issued at an issue price of less than 100 per cent. of their principal amount. Any
discount element on any such Notes will not be subject to any United Kingdom withholding tax
pursuant to the provisions mentioned above.
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Where Notes are issued with a redemption premium, as opposed to being issued at a discount, then
any such element of premium may constitute a payment of interest. Payments of interest may be
subject to United Kingdom withholding tax as outlined above.

The references to “interest” above mean “interest™ as understood in United Kingdom tax law. The
statements above do not take any account of any different definitions of “interest” which may
prevail under any other law or which may be created by the terms and conditions of the Notes or
any related documentation.

Notes issued by ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. (“Non-U.K. Notes”)

Payments of interest on Non-U.K. Notes may be made without withholding or deduction for or on
account of United Kingdom income tax.

Proposed EU Withholding Tax Directive

The European Union is currently considering proposals for a new directive regarding the taxation of
savings income. It is proposed that, subject to a number of important conditions being met,
Member States will be required to provide to the tax authorities of another Member State details
of payments of interest or other similar income paid by a person within its jursdiction to an
individual resident in that other Member State, subject to the right of certain Member States to
opt instead for a withhelding system for a transitional period in relation to such payments and
subject to the proposals nat being required to be applied to Notes issued before 1 March 2001 or
to Notes issued before 1 March 2002 and which are fungible with Notes issued before 1 March
2001.

NETHERLANDS

The following is a general summary of Netherlands taxation as at the date hereof in relation to payments
made under the Notes, Receipts or Coupons. It is not exhaustive and Noteholders who are in doubt as to
their tax position should consult their professional advisors.

@

(®)

All payments made by the relevant Issuer under the Notes, Receipts or Coupons may be made free
of any withholding or deduction of, for or on account of any taxes of whatever nature imposed,
levied, withheld or assessed by the Netherlands or any political subdivision or taxing authority
thereof or therein;

A holder of Notes, Receipts or Coupons will not be subject to any Netherlands taxes on income or
capital gains in respect of any payment under the Notes, Receipts or Coupons or in respect of any
gain realised on the disposal or deemed disposal of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons, provided that:

()  such holder is neither resident nor deemed to be resident in the Netherlands nor has made an
election for the application of the rules of the Dutch Income Tax Act 2001 as they apply to
residents of the Netherlands; and

(i1} such holder does not have and is not deemed to have an enterprise or an interest in an
enterprise which is, in whole or in part, carried on through a permanent establishment, a
deemed permanent establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands and to
which enterprise or part of an enterprise the Notes, Receipts or Coupons are attributable; and

(ii1) such holder does not carry out any other activities in the Netherlands that exceed regular asset
management; and

(iv) such holder, individuals relating to such holder (statutory defined term) and certain of their
relatives by blood or marriage in the direct line (including foster children) do not have a
substantial interest (statutory defined term) in a Netherlands resident or deemed resident
entity and do not have an interest other than by way of shareholding, in an enterprise in the
Netherlands to which entity or enterprise the Notes or the proceeds of the Notes will be made
available.

Subject to paragraph (b)(iv), a holder of Notes, Receipts or Coupons will not be or become subject
to Netherlands taxation on income or capital gains by reason only of the execution, delivery and/or
enforcement of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons or the performance by the relevant Issuer of its
obligations under the Notes, Receipts or Coupons.
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©

(11)

@

(e)

No Netherlands gift, estate or inheritance taxes will arise on the transfer of Notes, Receipts or
Coupons by way of a gift by, or on the death of, a holder of Notes, Receipts or Coupons who is
neither resident nor deemed to be resident in the Netherlands, unless:

(i) such holder at the time of the gift has or at the time of his death had an enterprise or an
interest in an enterprise that is or was, in whole or in part, carried on through a permanent
establishment or a permanent representative in the Netherlands and to which enterprise or
part of an enterprise the Notes, Receipts or Coupons are or were attributable; or

in the case of a gift of a Note, Receipt or Coupon by an individual who at the time of the gift was
neither resident nor deemed to be resident in the Netherlands, such individual dies within 180 days
after the date of the gift, while being resident or deemed to be resident in the Netherlands.

No Netherlands turnover tax will arise in respect of any payment in consideration for the issue of
the Notes or with respect to any payment by the relevant Issuer of principal, interest or premium (if
any) on the Notes.

No Netherlands registration tax, customs duty, transfer tax, stamp duty or any other similar tax or
duty, other than court fees, will be payable in the Netherlands in respect of or in connection with
the execution, delivery and/or enforcement by legal proceedings (including the enforcement of any
foreign judgement in the Courts of the Netherlands) of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons or the
performance by the relevant Issuer of its obligations under the Notes, Receipts or Coupons.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Summary of Dealer Agreement

Subject to the terms and on the conditions contained in a Dealer Agreement dated 15 July 1997 as
amended and restated by an Amended and Restated Dealer Agreement dated 15 May 2001 (together
the “Dealer Agreement”) between the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Permanent Dealers and the Arrangers,
the Notes will be offered on a continuous basis by the Issuer to the Permanent Dealers. However, each
Issuer has reserved the night to sell Notes directly on its own behalf to Dealers that are not Permanent
Dealers. The Notes may be resold at prevailing market prices, or at prices related thereto, at the time of
such resale, as determined by the relevant Dealer. The Notes may also be sold by each Issuer through the
Dealers, acting as agents of the relevant Issuer. The Dealer Agreement also provides for Notes to be issued
in syndicated Tranches that are jointly and severally underwntten by two or mote Dealers.

The relevant Issuer (if applicable, failing whom the Guarantor) will pay each relevant Dealer a
commission in respect of Notes subscribed by it as separately agreed between them. Each Issuer (if
applicable, failing whom the Guarantor) has agreed to reimburse the Arrangers for certain of their
expenses incurred in connection with the establishment of the Programme and the Dealers for certain
of their activities in connection with the Programme. The commissions payable in respect of an issue of
Notes on a syndicated basis will be stated in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Issuer has agreed to indemnify the Dealers against certain liabilities in connection with the offer and
sale of the Notes. The Dealer Agreement entitles the Dealers to terminate any agreement that they make
to subscribe Notes in certain circumstances prior to payment for such Notes being made to the relevant
Issuer.

Selling Restrictions

United States

The Notes and the Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may
not be offered or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons

except in certain transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the Secunties Act. Terms
used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Notes in bearer form having a maturity of more than one year are subject to U.S. tax law requirements
and may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or its possessions or to a United States
person, except in certain transactions permitted by U.S. tax regulations. Terms used in this paragraph
have the meanings given to them by the U.S. Intemal Revenue Code of 1986 and regulations thereunder.

Each Dealer has agreed that, except as permitted by the Dealer Agreement, it will not offer, sell or deliver
the Notes of any identifiable Tranche, (i} as part of their distribution at any time or (i} otherwise until
40 days after completion of the distribution of such Tranche as determined, and certified to the Issuer, by
the Fiscal Agent, or in the case of Notes issued on a syndicated basis, the Lead Manager, within the
United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, and it will have sent to each dealer
to which it sells Notes during the restricted period a confinmation or other notice setting forth the
restrictions on offers and sales of the Notes within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit
of, U.S. persons. Terms used in this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Regulation S under
the Securities Act.

In addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the offering, an offer or sale of Notes within the
United States by any dealer (whether or not participating in the offering) may violate the registration
requirements of the Securities Act, if such offer is made otherwise than in accordance with an available
exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

Each issuance of index-, commodity- or currencydinked MNotes will be subject to such additional
United States selling restrictions as the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) may agree, as indicated
in the applicable Pricing Supplement. Each Dealer has agreed that it will offer, sell or deliver such Notes
only in compliance with such additional United States selling restnctions.
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United Kingdom

Each Dealer has represented and agreed and each further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be
required to represent and agree, that:

1. it has not offered or sold and will not offer or sell (a) any Notes having a maturity of one year or
more, which are to be admitted to the Official List in accordance with Part IV of the Financial
Services Act 1986 (the “Act™) to persons in the United Kingdom prior to admission of such
Notes to such listing or (b} prior to the date six months after their date of issue, any Notes having
a maturity of one year or more, in respect of which admission to such hsting is not to be sought, to
persons in the United Kingdom, in each case, except to persons whose ordinary activities involve
them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of investments (as principal or agent) for the
purposes of their businesses or otherwise in circumstances that have not resulted and will not
result in an offer to the public in the United Kingdom within the meaning of the Public Offers of
Securities Regulations 1995 (as amended) or, in the case of Notes in respect of which admission to
such listing is to be sought, the Act;

2. it has complied with and will comply with all applicable provisions of the Act with respect to
anything done by it in relation to the Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom;
and

3. it has only issued or passed on and will only issue or pass on in the United Kingdom any document
received by it in connection with the issue of any Notes, other than, in relation to any Notes to be
admitted to the Official List, any document that consists of or any part of listing particulars,
supplementary listing particulars or any other document required or permitted to be published by
listing rules under Part IV of the Act, to a person who is of a kind described in Article 11(3) of the
Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996 (as amended) or
is a person to whom such document may otherwise lawfully be issued or passed on.

Germany

In connection with the initial placement of any Notes in Germany, each Dealer has agreed and each
further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it will offer and sell such
Notes (i) unless otherwise provided in the relevant subscription agreement or the applicable Pricing
Supplement in the case of an issue made on a syndicated basis, only for an aggregate purchase price per
purchaser of at least DM 80,000 (or the foreign currency equivalent} or such other amount as may be
stipulated from time to time by applicable German law or (i) as may otherwise be permitted in
accordance with applicable German law.

Japan

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the
“Securities and Exchange Law”). Accordingly, each of the Dealers has represented and agreed and each
further Dealer appointed under the Programme will be required to agree that it has not, directly or
indirectly, offered or sold and will not, directly or indirectly, offer or seil any Notes in Japan or to a
resident of Japan except pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise
in compliance with the Secunties and Exchange Law and other relevant laws and reguiations of Japan. As
used in this paragraph, “resident of Japan™ means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation
or other entity organised under the laws of Japan.

Netherlands

Each Dealer has represented and agreed (and each further Dealer appointed under the programme will be
required to represent and agree) that it has not, directly or indirectly, offered, sold or transferred and that
it will not, directly or indirectly, offer, sell or transfer in or (in the case of Notes issued by ICI
Investments (Netherlands) B.V.) outside the Netherlands any Notes issued under the Programme which
have a denomination of less than NLG 100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency), to any person
(including legal entities) other than (a) to persons who trade or invest in securities in the conduct of their
profession or trade within the meaning of the 1995 Act on the supervision of the securities trade (Wer
toezicht effectenverkeer 1995 (the “Securities Act”)) and its implementing regulations, and (b) with due
observance of article 2 paragraph 2 of the Exemption regulation putsuant to the Secunties Act
(Vrijstellingsregeling Wet Toezicht Effectenverkeer 1995), except in circumstances in which (i) one of the
other cxempﬂons set out in article 3 paragraph 2 of the Secusties Act or (ii) one of the other
exemptions pursuant to article 4 of the Securities Act is applicable, or (1) the Securities Board of the
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Netherlands has, upon request, granted an individual dispensation from the prohibition contained in
article 3, paragraph 1, of the Securities Act and the conditions attached to such dispensation are fully
complied with.

In addition to the above, Zero Coupon Notes in definitive form or other Notes that qualify as savings
certificates as defined in the Savings Certificates Act (Wet inzake spaarbewijzen) may only be transferred
and accepted through the mediation of either the Issuer or a member of the AEX Stock Exchange' with
due observance of the Savings Certificate Act and its implementing regulations, provided that no such
mediation is required (i) in respect of the initial issue of such Notes to the first holders thereof, (i) to
the extent that such Notes are physically outside the Netherlands and are not immediately thereafter
distributed in the Netherlands in the course of primary trading or immediately thereafter or (iii) in
respect of any transfer and acceptance by individuals who do not act in the conduct of a profession or
trade. If the Savings Certificates Act applies, certain identification requirements in relation to the issue
and transfer of, and payments on, Zero Coupon Notes have to be complied with.

Savings certificates within the meaning of the Savings Certificates Act are Notes in bearer form which
constitute a claim for a fixed sum against the Issuer and on which interest does not become due pror
to maturity or on which no interest is due whatsoever.

General

These selling restrictions may be modified by the agreement of the Issuer and the Dealers following a
change in a relevant law, regulation or directive. Any such modification will be set out in the Pricing
Supplement issued in respect of the issue of Notes to which it relates or in a supplement to this
Offering Circular.

Other than in the United Kingdom, no action has been taken in any jurisdiction that would permit a
public offering of any of the Notes, or possession or distribution of the Offering Circular or any other
offering material or any Pricing Supplement, in any country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose
1s required.

Each Dealer has agreed that it will, to the best of its knowledge, comply with all relevant laws, regulations
and directives in each junsdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Notes or has in its
possession or distnbutes the Offering Circular, any other offering material or any Pricing Supplement
and none of the Issuers, the Guarantor, nor any other Dealer shall have responsibility therefor.

Note:

1. The Savings Certificate Act still refers to “members of the Stock Exchange Association”, but since the reorganisation of the
Netherlands Stock Exchange, the reference should be to “admitted institutions to the AEX Stock Exchange™.

61




FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Set out belowo is the form of Pricing Supplement (substantially in the form of the IPMA Pro Forma Pricing
Supplement; sections which vary from the IPMA Pro Forma Pricing Supplement are indicated by 't) which will be
completed for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme.

[Date]
IMPERIAL CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES PLC
ICI FINANCE PLC
ICI INVESTMENTS (NETHERLANDS) B.V.

Issue of JAggregate Nominal Amount of Tranche] [Title of Notes)
[Guaranieed by IMPERIAL CHEMICAL INDUSTRIES PLC]
under the US5.$5,000,000,000
Euro Medium Term Note Programme

+[The Notes constitute [commercial paper/shorter term debt securities/longer term debt securities]*
issued in accordance with regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act 1987, The Issuer of
the Notes is not an authorised institution or 2 European authorised institution (as such terms are defined
in the Banking Act 1987 (Exempt Transactions) Regulations 1997). Repayment of the principal and
payment of any interest or premium in connection with the Notes has [not] been guaranteed [by
Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, which is [not an authorised institution or a European authonsed
institution] **

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as “Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the numbering should
remain as set out below, even tf “Not Applicable” is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub-paragraphs.j

1. [(@)] Issuer: [Imperial Chemical Industries PLC] {ICI Finance PLC]
[ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.]
G} Guarantor: Imperial Chemical Industries PLC]
2. [(i)] Senes Number: (@]
[(i) Tranche Number: (@]

(If fungible with an existing Series, detasls of that Serses,
including the date on which the Notes become fungible)]

3. Specified Currency or Currencies: (@]
4.  Aggregate Nominal Amount:
~  Series: (@]
~  Tranche: | @]
5. [i] +lssue Price: [@]) per cent. of the Aggregate Nominal Amount [plus

accrued interest] from [insert date] (in the case of fungible
issues only, if applicable)

[ii] Net Proceeds: [ @) (Reguired onky for listed issues)
6. Specified Denominations: (@]

(in the case of Registered Notes, this means |[@]
the minimum integral amount in which
transfers can be made)

7. [()] Issue Date [and Interest (@]
Commencement Date]:

[(if) Interest Commencement Date (if [@]]
different from the Issue Date):

Naotes:

*  Include “commercial paper” if Notes must be redeemed before their first anniversary. Include “shorter term debt securities” if Notes
may not be redeetned before their first anniversary but must be redeemed before their third anniversary. Include “longer term debt
securities” if Notes may not be redeemed before their third anniversary. Commercial paper may not be publicly offered in France.

**  Unless otherwise permitted, text to be included for all Notes (including Notes denominated int sterling) in respect of which the issue
proceeds are accepted by the Issuer in the United Kingdom.
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8. Matunty Date: (Fixed rate — specify date/
Floating rate — Interest Payment Date falling in
{specify monthl]

9. Interest Basis: [[@] per cent. Fixed Rate]
[[LIBOR/EURIBOR] +/- | @] per cent. Floating Rate]
[Zero Coupon]
[Index Linked Interest]
[specify other]
(further particulars specified below)

10. Redemption/Payment Basis: [Redemption at par]
[Index Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency]

[Partly Paid]
[Instalment]
[specify other)
11. Change of Interest Basis or (Specify detasls of any provision for change of Notes into
Redemption/Payment Basis: another Interest Basis or Redemption/Payment Basts)
12. Put/Call Options: [investor Put]
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below) ]
13. [(1)] Status of the Nates: (Give detazls)
[(ii) Status of the Guarantee: [Grve details]
14. Listing: [The Notes are to be admitted to trade on the London
Stock Exchange/Luxembourg/specify other/None]
15. Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]
Provisions Relating to Interest (if any) Payable
16. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)
(i) Rate|(s)] of Interest: [ @] per cent. per annum [payable
[annually/semi-annually/quarterly] in arrear]
(i) Interest Payment Date(s): (@] in each year
(i) Fixed Coupon Amount(s): [@] per @] in nominal amount
(iv} Broken Amount(s): (Fnsert particulars of any initial or final broken interest
amounts which do not correspond with the Fixed Coupon
Amount]
(v) fFixed Day Count Fraction: [30/360 or Actual/Actual (ISMA) or specify other]

(Note that if interest is not payable on a regular basis (for
example, if there are Broken Amounts specified) Actual/
Actual will not be a suitable Fixed Day Count Fraction)

{(vl) Other terms relating to the [None/Give details)
method of calculating interest for
Fixed Rate Notes:
17. Floating Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable]
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

(i) Specified Period(s) /Specified (@]
Interest Payment Dates:
(ii) Business Day Convention: [Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day

Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/[specify
other]]

(Note that if interest is not payable on a regular basis {for example, if there are Broken Amounts specified) Actual/Actual will not be a
suitable Fixed Day Count Fraction)
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18.

19.

(i) Additional Business Centre(s):

{tv) Manner in which the Rate of
Interest and Interest Amount is
to be determined:

(v) Party responsible for calculating
the Rate of Interest and Interest
Amount (if not the Agent):

(vi) Screen Rate Determination:
~ Reference Rate:

-~ Interest Determination
Date(s):

~ Relevant Screen Page:

(vii) ISDA Determination:
~ Floating Rate Option:
~  Designated Maturity:
~ Reset Date:
(vi) Margin(s) :
(ix) Minimum Rate of Interest:
(x} Maximum Rate of Interest:
(xi) tFloating Day Count Fraction:

(xi1) Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions and any other terms
relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating
Rate Notes, if different from
those set out in the Conditions:

Zero Coupon Note Provisions

(1) Accrual Yield:
(i) Reference Price:

(1) Any other formula/basis

of determining amount payable:

Index Linked Interest Note Provisions

() Index/Formula:

(i) FCalculation Agent responsible
for calculating the principal and/
ot interest due:

(@]

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/specify
other]

(@]

(@]
(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR or other, although additional

tnformation 1s requtred if other — including fo fallback
provisions in the Agency Agreement)

(@]
(Second London business day prior lo the start of each Interest

Period if LIBOR and second TARGET day prior to the start of
each Interest Period if EURIBOR)

(@]
(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Telerate Page 248 ensure it is

a
page which shows a composite rate)

(@]

@]

(@]

[+/—] [@] per cent. per annum
[@] per cent. per annum

(@] per cent. per annum

[®]

(@]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

(@] per cent. per annum

(@]

(@]
(Consider applicable day count fraction if euro denominated)

[Applicable/Not Applicable}
(If not applicable, delete the remaining subparagraphs of this

paragraph)
lgive or annex details)

(@]
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20.

(i) Provisions for determining
coupon where calculation by
reference to Index and/or
Formula is impossible or

: impracticable:

(iv) Specified Period(s) /Specified
Interest Payment Dates:

(v) Business Day Convention:

(vi) Additional Business Centre(s):
(vil) Minimum Rate of Interest:
(viii) Maximum Rate of Interest:
(ix) Day Count Fraction:

Dual Currency Note Provisions

(1)  Rate of Exchange/method of
calculating Rate of Exchange:

(i) Calculation Agent, if any,
responsible for calculating the
principal and/or interest payable:

(1) Provisions applicable where
calculation by reference to Rate
of Exchange impossible or
impracticable:

(iv) Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:

Provisions Relating to Redemption

21.

22,

Tlssuer Call

() Optional Redemption Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption
Amount(s) and method, if any,
of caleulation of such amount(s):

(ili) If redeemable in part:
(2 Minimum Redemption
Amount:

(b} Maximum Redemption
Amount:

{(iv) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

FInvestor Put

() Optional Redemption Date(s):

{i) Optional Redemption Amount(s)
and method, if any, of
calculation of such amount(s):

(i) Notice period (if other than as set
out in the Conditions):

(@]

(@]

[Floating Rate Convention/Following Business Day
Convention/Modified Following Business Day
Convention/Preceding Business Day Convention/
specify other|

LJ

(@] per cent. per annum

(@] per cent. per annum

(@]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

lgtve details)

(@]

(@]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

(@]

(@]

(@]
@]
(@]
[Applicable/Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

(@]
(@]

(@]
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23. Final Redemption Amount (Par/specify other/see Appendix]

24. Early Redemption Amount(s) payable [@]
on redemption for taxation reasons or
on event of default and/or the method
of calculating the same (if required or
if different from that set out in the
Conditions):

General Provisions Applicable to the Notes

25. Form of Notes: [Bearer Notes/Exchangeable Bearer Notes:
Temporary Global Note exchangeable for a Permanent
Global Note which is exchangeable for Definitive Notes
[on 60 days’ notice given at any time/only upon an
Exchange Event].
[Temporary Global Note exchangeable for Definitive
Notes on and after the Exchange Date.]
[Permanent Global Note exchangeable for Definitive
Notes {on 60 days’ natice given at any time/only upon an
Exchange Event].]|
[Registered Notes: (specify nominal amounts) |

26. Additional Financial Centre(s) or other [Not Applicable/give details)
special provisions relating to Payment  (Note that this item relates to the place of payment and not

Dates: Interest Period end dates to which items 17(ii1) and 19(vi)
relates)
27, +Talons for future Coupons or [Yes/No. If yes, give detals]

Receipts to be attached to Definitive
Bearer Notes (and dates on which such
Talons mature):

28. fDetails relating to Partly Paid Notes:  [Not Applicable/give details)
amount of each payment comprising
the Issue Price and date on which each
payment is to be made and, if different
from those specified in the Temporary
Global Note, consequences of failure
to pay, including any right of the
Issuer to forfeit the Notes and interest
due on late payment:

29. Details relating to Instalment Notes: [Not Applicable/give details)
amount of each instalment, date on
which each payment is to be made:

30. {Redenomination applicable: Redenomination [not] applicable
(if Redenomination is applicable, specfy any provisions
necessary to deal with floating rate interest calculation
(including alternative reference rates) )

31. Other terms or special conditions: [Not Applicable/give details)
Distribution
32. () If syndicated, names of [Not Applicable/give names)
Managers:
(i) Stabilising Manager (if any): [Not Applicable/give name)
33. If non-syndicated, name of relevant (@]
Dealer:

34. tWhether TEFRA D or TEFRA C [TEFRA D/TEFRA C/TEFRA not applicable]
rules applicable or TEFRA rules not
applicable:

35. Additional selling restrictions: [Not Applicable/give details]
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Operational Information

36. Any clearing system(s) other than [Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s)]
Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg and the relevant
identification number(s):

37. Delivery: Delivery [against/free of] payment
38. Additional Paying Agent(s) (if any): @]

ISIN: [@] (@]

Common Code: [@] (@]

(Insert bere any other relevant codes such as CUSIP and CINS.)

LIf the Issuer is relying on Regulation 13(4)(b) and the Qffering Circular does not include one, include here a
summary of the tax treatment relevant to United Kingdom resident holders of the Notes.|

[Listing Application

This Pricing Supplement comprises the details required to list the issue of Notes described herein
pursuant to the listing of the 1).5.$5,000,000,000 Global Medium Term Note Programme of [Imperial
Chemical Industries PLC] [ICI Finance PLC] [ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.].

Responsibility

The Issuer [and the Guarantor] accept|s] responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing
Supplement.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:[Signed on behalf of the Guarantor:

By Byt e
Duly anthorised Duly anthorised]
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The admission of Notes to the Official List of the UK Listing Authority will be expressed as 2
percentage of their principal amount (exclusive of accrued interest). It is expected that each
Tranche of the Notes which is to be admitted to the Official List and to trading on the London
Stock Exchange will be admitted separately as and when issued, subject only to the issue of a
temporary or permanent Global Note (or one or more Certificates) in respect of each Tranche. It
1s expected that the approval of the Programme will take place on or around 15 May 2001. Prior to
official listing, however, dealings will be permitted by the London Stock Exchange in accordance
with its rules. Transactions will normally be effected for delivery on the third working day after
the day of the transaction. However, unlisted Notes may be issued pursuant to the Programme.

Each of the Issuers and the Guarantor has obtained all necessary consents, approvals and
authorisations in connection with the issue and performance of the Notes and the guarantees
relating to them. The issue of the Notes by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC and the giving of
the guarantees by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC relating to the Notes issued by ICI Finance
PLC and ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. were authorised by resolutions of the Executive
Committee of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC passed on 14 July 1997, 22 Apnl 1998, 5 May
1999, 4 May 2000 and 14 May 2001, respectively, and the issue of the Notes by ICI Finance PLC
and ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V., respectively, was authorised by resolutions of the Board of
Directors of ICI Finance PLC passed on 14 July 1997, 22 April 1998, 5 May 1999, 4 May 2000 and
14 May 2001 and by the Board of Managing Directors and by the shareholder of ICI Investments
{Netherlands) B.V. passed on 14 July 1997, 22 Aprl 1998, 5 May 1999, 28 April 2000 and 14 May
2001.

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Imperial Chemical
Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC, ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. or the ICI Group since
31 December 2000 and no material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of
Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, ICI Finance PLC, ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V., or the
ICI Group since 31 December 2000

Except as disclosed in “Imperial Chemical Industries PLC—Litigation” on pages 33 to 34 of this
Offering Circular with respect to the Guarantor and certain of its subsidiaries, none of the Issuers
nor the Guarantor nor any of their respective subsidiaries is or has been involved in any legal or
arbitration proceedings that may have, or have had during the 12 months preceding the date of
this document, a significant effect on the financial position of the ICI Group or of the Issuer or
the Guarantor nor is any Issuer or the Guarantor aware that any such proceedings are pending or

threatened.

Each Bearer Note, Receipt, Coupon and Talon will bear the following legend: “Any United States
person who holds this obligation will be subject to limitations under the United States income tax
laws, including the limitations provided in Sections 165(j) and 1287(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code”.

Notes have been accepted for clearance through the Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
systems. The Common Code and the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for
each Series of Notes will be set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement. If the Notes are to clear
through an additiona} or alternative clearing system the appropriate information will be specified
in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

For so long as Notes may be issued pursuant to this Offering Circular, the following documents will
be available, during usual business hours on any weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays
excepted), for inspection at the registered office of the Guarantor and the specified office for the
time being of the Fiscal Agent:

7.1 the Agency Agreement (which includes the form of the Global Notes, the definitive Bearer
Notes, the Certificates, the Coupons, the Receipts and the Talons);

7.2 the Dealer Agreement;
7.3 the Deeds of Covenant;

74 the Memorandum and Articles of Association of each Issuer (together with an English
translation in the case of the Articles of Association of ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V.);
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10.

7.5 the audited consolidated annual accounts of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, the audited
annual accounts of ICI Finance PLC and the audited annual accounts of ICI Investments
{(Netherlands) B.V. for the two years ended 31 December 2000;

7.6 each Pricing Supplement for Notes that are admitted to the Official List of the UK Listing
Authority and admitted to trading on the London Stock Exchange or any other stock
exchange;

7.7 a copy of this Offering Circular together with any Supplement to this Offering Circular or
further Offering Circular;

7.8 a copy of the subscription agreement for Notes issued on a syndicated basis that are officially
listed on the London Stock Exchange; and

7.9 all reports, letters and other documents, balance sheets, valuations and statements by any
expert any part of which is extracted or referred to in this Offering Circular.

KPMG Audit Plc (Chartered Accountants) have audited, and rendered unqualified audit reports on,
the accounts of Imperial Chemical Industries PLC and ICI Finance PLC respectively for the three
years ended 31 December 2000 and KPMG Accountants N.V. (registeraccountant (RA)) has
rendered an unqualified audit report on ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. for the three years
ended 31 December 2000.

KPMG Audit Ple and KPMG Accountants N.V. have given their written consent to the inclusion in
this document of their reports in the form and context in which they are respectively included and
have authorised the contents of their respective reports for the purposes of Section 152(1)(e) of the
Financial Services Act 1986.

Notes (including Notes denominated in sterling) in respect of which the issue proceeds are to be
accepted by the Issuers in the United Kingdom and which are issued pursuant to an exempt
transaction under regulation 13(1) or (3) of the Banking Act 1987 (Fxempt Transactions)
Regulations 1997 (the “Regulations”) will constitute commercial paper, shorter term debt
securities or longer term debt securities (in each case, as defined in the Regulations), as
specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement, in each case issued in accordance with
regulations made under section 4 of the Banking Act 1987. The Issuers are not authorised
institutions or European authorised institutions (as such terms are defined in the Regulations) and
repayment of the principal and payment of any interest or premium in connection with such Notes
will, in the case of issues by ICI Finance PLC and ICI Investments (Netherlands) B.V. only, be
guaranteed by Imperial Chemical Industries PLC, which is not an authorised institution or a
European authorised institution.

In relation to any Notes which are to be issued pursuant to an exempt transaction under regulation
13(3) of the Regulations where such Notes would fall within regulation 13(4)(a) or (b) of the
Regulations:

(a) the relevant Issuer confirms that, as at the date hereof, it has complied with its obligations
under the relevant rules (as defined in the Regulations) in relation to the admission to and
continuing listing of the Programme and of any previous issues made under it and listed on
the same exchange as the Programme;

(b) the relevant Issuer confirms that it will have complied with its obligations under the relevant
rules in relation to the admission to listing of such Notes by the time when such Notes are so
admuitted; and

() the relevant Issuer confirms that, as at the date hereof, it has not, since the last publication, if
any, in compliance with the relevant rules of information about the Programme, any previous
issues made under it and listed on the same exchange as the Programme, or any Notes fal]ing
within regulation 13{4)(2) or (b) of the Regulations, having made all reasonable enquiries,
become aware of any change in circumstances which could reasonably be regarded as
significantly and adversely affecting its ability to meet its obligations as issuer in respect of
such Notes as they fall due.

In relation to Notes which are to be exempt transactions under regulation 13(3} of the Regulations
and fall within regulation 13(4)(b) of the Regulations, the relevant Issuer confirms that, as at the
date hereof, it has complied and will continue to comply with its obligations under the
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Regulations to lodge all relevant information (as defined in the Regulations) in relation to any such
Notes with the UK Listing Authority.

The third stage of European economic and monetary union commenced on 1 January 1999 when
the value of the euro as against the currencies of the member states participating in the third stage
was irrevocably fixed and the euro became a currency in its own right.

With effect from 1 January 2002 the participating member currencies will cease to exist.

A copy of this Offering Circular has been, and a copy of each Pricing Supplement for Notes listed
on the Official List of the UK Listing Authority wili be, filed with the Secunties Board of the
Netherlands if required by, and depending on, the relevant exemption or exception from the
offering prohibition of article 3 of the 1995 Act on the supervision of the securities trade (as
amended) and the regulations issued pursuant thereto.
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